# Doing The Works Of Jesus, Plus More

## E. Dale Ross

Published by Dale Ross Ministries, Inc.

P.O. Box 2722

Tupelo, Mississippi 38803, U.S.A.

DaleRossMinistries.com

Email: Dale@DaleRossMinistries.com

In the event your Christian Bookstore does not have books written by Dale Ross or published by Dale Ross Ministries, Inc., please write for price list and order form from Dale Ross Ministries, Inc.

ISBN-10: 1-932040-01-3 ISBN-13: 978-1-932040-01-2

© Copyright 2006 by Dale Ross All Rights Reserved. Printed in U.S.A.

U.S.A.

Published by
Dale Ross Ministries, Inc. P.O. Box 2722

Tupelo, Mississippi, 38803

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

Foreword to Doing the Works of Jesus Plus  MoreII
Dedication V
IntroductionV
How to Receive Jesus 1
Turning My Back On God7
What God Can Do For A Backslider 15
Learning the Supernatural21
The Beginning of the Healing Class 29
God You've Got the Wrong Person 37
Controlling Weather47
Supernatural Translations 55
The Healing of Back Problems 61
Gods Supernatural Provisions 71
Words of Knowledge85
Feeding the Multitudes95
Persecution 105

Holy Spirit Power	. 115
Index	. 127

# FOREWORD TO DOING THE WORKS OF JESUS PLUS MORE

Dale Ross has had an incredible life of serving God in various capacities. His book is not only a testimony book of his personal life, but he gives you an opportunity to learn how to minister doing the works of Jesus plus more.

All of us are called to do the same works that Jesus did. The Great Commission of the Bible as it appears in Mark 16:15-18 it says, "Go into all the world and preach the gospel to every creature. He who believes and is baptized will be saved; but he who does not believe will be condemned. And these signs will follow those who believe: In My name they will cast out demons; they will speak with new tongues; they will take up serpents; and if they drink anything deadly, it will by no means hurt them; they will lay hands on the sick, and they will recover." (NKJV)

Many people are not moved to do this simply because they don't know how to do it and in this book Dale gives you an excellent way to learn how to operate in the gifts of the Spirit, how to minister healing to the sick and how to fulfill the Great Commission in the Bible.

This is interestingly written so that you will want to read more and more and you will want to get from one chapter to the next.

We recommend it wholeheartedly.

Charles and Frances Hunter

#### **DEDICATION**

I dedicate this book to all of the people that have been an encouragement to me throughout my life and the writing of this book.

To my mother Idora, for raising seven children in a Christian family and being my best friend. I give her honor and a big thank you for everything.

To Charles & Frances Hunter for teaching me how to flow in the supernatural powers of God and for always being available to take my phone calls and reading my emails. To Charles & Frances for being very dear friends and for ordaining me into the ministry.

To all of my brothers, sisters, nieces and nephews for being the absolute greatest friends and family members anyone could ever ask for.

To Kenneth (Skip) and Sandra Alfreds for helping in the ministry for many years. To everyone that will read this book and grow in the saving knowledge of Jesus Christ and go forth and witness to people everywhere, and lay hands on the sick and see them recover and flow in the mighty powers of Jesus Christ.

#### INTRODUCTION

Jesus said the way you do the works that He did, plus more is to believe on Him that He sent. As you go forth and learn how to lay hands on the sick and see them recover, you will minister to people with signs and wonders following. Mark 16:15-19 tells us that as believers we are to go "into all the world and preach the gospel to every creature." God's Word says we will lay hands on the sick and they shall recover. (Mark 16:18)

It will help you to flow effectively in the supernatural. This is not for those that want to be an everyday Christian, trying to merely 'make it' to Heaven. You will learn that the impossible *is* possible with God and the power of God will manifest through your life. There is a price to pay and that is to do every day what Jesus wants you to do, dying to self and living in the spirit. Do you have a desire to fall truly in love with Jesus and allow Him to use you in extraordinary ways for what He created you? If so, this book is for you.

#### Chapter 1

#### **HOW TO RECEIVE JESUS**

I prayed Charles & Frances Hunter into my life; not knowing who it was that God was going to send as a result of my prayers but, thank God it was them. As a result my life has drastically changed for the better in many ways. I have gotten so much closer to God, learned how to flow in the gifts of the spirit, learned how to lay hands on the sick and see them recover, how to operate a ministry. That's just to name a few. I am so thankful for all the benefits that comes along with having Charles & Frances Hunter as dear friends for so many years. God is in the business of answering prayer requests and He knows who to put in your path and when.

When I was a little child God started preparing me to flow in the gifts of the spirit. I didn't know it then, but as I look back I can see it now. When I was very young I would visualize people getting hurt in some way and a supernatural power out there somewhere healing them instantly. I would visualize

someone cutting themselves real bad and all of a sudden the cut would completely heal up with no scar left. I would visualize someone breaking a bone and all of a sudden the bone would completely mend with no sign that it was ever broken. There were many more kinds of sicknesses that I would see heal instantly. I didn't know then what power it was out there that was healing them but I knew that there had to be such a power and that the supernatural could be done somehow. I didn't know exactly how or where it would come from but I knew that there had to be a way for it to happen. I later found out that it is Jesus that does it and that we can do the works that Jesus did too, plus more.

I gave my heart to God at the age of twelve and I went to school the next day and told all the students and the teachers what Jesus did for me yesterday and that they should get saved too. I never stopped doing this. When Jesus came into my heart at the age of twelve I got so on fire for God immediately that I couldn't keep my mouth shut. Everywhere I went I told everyone about Jesus. I literally mean everyone. I wanted everyone to know Jesus as Lord and Savior. This kept on and on and when I was in the ninth grade I was still doing that. In the ninth grade my last class for the day was small engine repair. At the end of

#### How To Receive Jesus

each day after that class I would sit on the corner of my small engine repair teachers desk and tell him about Jesus and what Jesus had done for me and Jesus wanted to do the same thing for him. He listened to me every day for about fifteen minutes then I would go home. One day he invited me to go to his house for dinner and he said he had two sons that he wanted me to witness to.

I accepted without hesitation. I was so happy because this was the first invitation that I had ever gotten to witness to someone. While he was preparing dinner I was witnessing to his sons. They didn't give their heart to Jesus but I had planted and hopefully watered some seeds that were already there. I was so happy I didn't know what to do.

All this time I was wanting the baptism of The Holy Ghost but I didn't know how to receive it and I wasn't allowed to go to the church of my choice. God kept telling me that one day I would turn eighteen and I could go to the church of my choice. In the meantime I prayed for everyone and everything that moved to be healed. I never saw any one get healed or anyone get saved but I kept doing it anyway. I was having the time of my life. Jesus was absolutely the center of my life. I kept telling myself if I kept praying for people one day they

would start getting healed. I believed they would be healed but no one got healed. I kept on telling everyone about Jesus and no one got saved but I never got disappointed. I was doing what I loved doing the most and that was being more like Jesus everyday.

When I turned eighteen I found a church that ministers the baptism of The Holy Ghost and I was there the very first church service after my eighteenth birthday.

After church three elderly ladies took me to their house and sat a chair in the center of the living room floor and told me to sit in it. I sat in it and they gathered around me and prayed for God to give me the baptism of The Holy Ghost with the evidence of speaking in other tongues. I prayed right along with them asking God to give it to me, believing. They told me to say dah dah duh duh over and over again. Finally I got tongue-tied and they started shouting saying you got it you got it.

I didn't feel like I got it but I went right along with them anyway. I went home totally disgusted. I didn't know what to do after that. I had been waiting all these years to turn eighteen so I could receive, and then this.

What a total disappointment! I started thinking out loud along those negative lines. I

#### How To Receive Jesus

finally said well, I asked God to give it to me so I believe He gave it to me and now all I needed to do was to speak in other tongues. I said I know what I will do, I will believe by faith that I have The baptism because I asked God for it and I will just keep saying the syllables that the three ladies told me to say and maybe I will get more syllables to go along with it.

Sure enough after a couple of days I got a whole sentence in tongues. I said I will be faithful with that and I will get more. I was faithful with that and I got another sentence in tongues. Now I could say two sentences in tongues. I believed God would increase my prayer language and He did.

Everywhere I would go I would say those two sentences. I didn't care where I was. I was determined to be faithful with it and it would grow; and grow it did.

It wasn't long before I had a complete prayer language. God had given me fluency. I was so happy. It would even totally change up at times like it was a totally different accent altogether. I had the baptism of The Holy Spirit with the evidence of speaking in other tongues. I now had the power in my life that I had been wanting.

#### Doing The Works Of Jesus, Plus More

I went back to visit the church where I got saved and tried to convince many people there to receive it. They told the pastor and he told me not to come back to their church because they don't believe in it.

I felt like I was experiencing the disappointments that Jesus suffered when He was rejected and I realized that the world would treat us the same way they treated Him. In fact, when they reject and mistreat us, they ARE mistreating and rejecting Jesus. I felt blessed so much and at the same time I felt sorry for the church because they wouldn't receive.

They didn't know what they were missing out on and I wanted so much to minister it to the whole church.

#### Chapter 2

#### TURNING MY BACK ON GOD

At the age of nineteen I became a part of another church and got in the wrong crowd of people. It wasn't on the streets I got into the wrong crowd it was at church. A group of us would have our after church fellowship that consisted of drinking a few beers and smoking marijuana. We tried to justify it by saying we had been to church and it was our after church fellowship. I still knew it was wrong but I did it anyway. It wasn't long before it soon led to all of us getting out of church completely.

Not long after that one day I decided I didn't want to live a Christian life anymore. Isn't it something how your sins and fleshly desires will draw you further from God if you allow it to do that? "I looked up toward heaven like I was looking at God and I said, OK God I'm tired of You. I don't want anything else to do with you. God get out of my life completely." I then looked down at the ground like I was looking at the devil and I said, "Devil you come into my life and guide me from this

day forward and I will do anything you tell me to do." I wish I hadn't done that but I did. Little did I realize then that Jesus didn't get out of my life. He was still there. He said I would never leave you nor forsake you. I'm the one that left Him and decided to follow the devil. Jesus also said I give gifts without repentance.

For about the next nine years I was living back in my sins. I was working to get drunk. I smoked a lot of marijuana during that time but never did like it. I just smoked it because everyone else was doing it. On the weekends I would go bar hopping with some people I worked with.

As I look back now during my backslidden state I can see many instances where God was still with me and guiding me in many areas and protecting me. Even on my job I was a lead person and I can see where God was protecting me from danger many times and helping me make decisions.

The devil tried several times to kill me and if it hadn't been for God and my dear mother praying for me he would have. All of you dear mothers out there praying earnestly for your children don't quit because according to Joshua 24:15 "As for me and my house we shall serve The Lord"; so don't let the devil have your children. God's word is truth and He

cannot lie. That tells me that you are about to see miracles happen in your family.

After nine years I wanted God back in my life. I wanted Him at least as much as I had Him before and not one bit less. I remembered the joy and happiness I had in God. I felt the Holy Spirit drawing me back to God in a great and mighty way.

I would say a sinner's prayer every day for two weeks. I would look up toward heaven and say a sinner's prayer asking God to come back into my life. Then I would bow my head and close my eyes for a couple of minutes hoping to feel something different. When I didn't feel anything different I would stand up, pop the top on a can of beer and hold it up to heaven as high as I could get it and say God toast to you. I would proceed to get drunk.

This went on every day for about 2 weeks, until I started to get scared. I didn't think God was going to ever come back into my life and that He didn't want me anymore. I was almost thoroughly convinced that I was headed to hell no matter what I did or how many sinners prayers I said. I was really starting to get beyond scared.

I didn't want to go to hell and I didn't want to keep living in my sins. I wanted God in

my life and I wanted all God could possibly give me. The Bible says in Luke 11:9-10 "And I say unto you, Ask, and it shall be given you; seek; and ye shall find; knock, and it shall be opened unto you. For everyone that asketh receiveth; and he that seeketh findeth; and to him that knocketh it shall be opened". Those scriptures are talking about the certainty of answered prayer. That means in order for it to be answered it has to be prayed. That means you have to ask God believing.

After two weeks of saying the sinners prayers one night I was expecting the guys I worked with over to pick me up to go barhopping. I put a gospel music album on my DJ system and I sang right along with it, looking out my window the whole time because I didn't want them to know I was searching for God. When they drove up I took the gospel album off and put on a rock and roll album real quick and they had no idea I was listening to gospel music and searching for God.

In fact no one on the face of the earth knew I was searching for God except God and me. The last thing I wanted to do was to get their advice on it, knowing what they would tell me which is to forget it. I didn't want to hear that because I was determined to get God back in my life one way or the other without any

anyone advising me against it. The best way I knew to make sure that didn't happen was to keep it between God and me. After all God is the one that was going to come into my heart and I didn't see any need in telling anyone else, especially those that weren't Christians.

We went barhopping that night and I was absolutely miserable because all I was thinking about was how to get God in my heart. My mind wasn't in the bars. It was on God. We hit most every bar in town that night.

I went home drunk and I took some more beer home with me. I went to bed and took some beer to bed with me. I was planning on drinking some more.

As I was drinking I noticed my Bible on my end table. I hadn't read it in nine years. I picked it up and wiped the dust off of it and let it flip open to where it wanted to. It flipped open to John 14:12 "Verily, Verily, I say unto you, He that believeth on me, the works that I do shall he do also; and greater works than these shall he do; because I go unto my Father".

I would take a drink of beer and read that verse and take a drink of beer and read that verse. Before long I would take a drink of beer and read that verse and pray. Take a drink of

beer and read that verse and pray. I would try to read something else in the Bible but nothing else would stand out at me so I would go right back to John 14:12. For about the next three hours I would read that same verse take a drink and pray, read that verse then take a drink then pray. It was a vicious cycle for about three hours. Read, drink and pray. Read, drink and pray. Read, drink and pray.

All of a sudden I heard an audible voice. It was just as if someone was in the room right beside me talking to me. It was a man's voice that was very deep and with great authority. It said Go to church tomorrow.

It scared me so bad I got out of bed and went running around the house to see if anyone was in the house with me. I looked in every room and every closet in the house and there was no one.

I got some more beer and took it to bed with me. I proceeded to drink and read the same verse and pray in the same vicious cycle over and over again. After a few minutes I heard the same voice again. It said go to church tomorrow. That time God opened my understanding that it was He that had said that both times and that was what He said the first time. I said OK God I will go to church tomorrow. This was on a Saturday night. With

that I went right off to sleep.

Isn't it something how you can sleep better when you see things God's way? It just has a way of working that way.

I woke up the next day with a hangover and headache from being drunk the night before. I didn't go to church that morning because I wasn't in any shape to go to church. Later that day God reminded me that I told Him I would go to church that day. I said yes God I will go to church today but I don't know where to go. He reminded me that two weeks prior to that my mother had invited me to a church. I said, OK I will go to my mother's house and find out where the church is and I will go to church.

I told God that I would go to church today for one reason only and that was to give Him one more chance to come into my heart. I told Him that I wanted at least as much of Him as I had before and not any less. I told God that I wanted at least as much joy and at least as much of the anointing that I had before I backslid. I said God if you don't save me in church today then I will be fully convinced that you won't ever save me again and that you don't want me back and that you are finished with me and I'm going to hell no matter what I do.

#### Doing The Works Of Jesus, Plus More

#### Chapter 3

# WHAT GOD CAN DO FOR A BACKSLIDER

I didn't even know what time church started because I haven't been in nine years. I had a 1977 Cadillac Seville and never had any problems out of it whatsoever. I got ready for church and got in the car and turned the key over and click click. It wouldn't even as much as turn over one time. I said I would fix this so I got out of the car and walked around to the hood. I laid my hands on the hood of the car and I said Satan I bind you up in the name of Jesus and I command you to get your hands off this car in the name of Jesus and car I command you to start in the name of Jesus. I was hoping it would wait till I got back in it before it started. With that I got back in the car and turned the key over and it started with no problem. There I was, going to church to get saved and praying for a car to start.

I got to my mothers house and found out where the church was that she had invited me to two weeks prior. I went to church and got there five minutes early.

Someone outside invited me to sit next to him. We sat three pews from the front. I had a great view of the pastor.

The whole time he was preaching I kept looking at the back door. I wanted to get up and run out of church. I was shaking for some reason. The devil kept telling me if you don't get out of here the walls are going to cave in and kill you and everyone in here. I didn't want everyone to see me run out so I sat there hoping the preacher would get to the invitation. That's all I wanted to hear...the invitation. The preacher later told me that he saw I was struggling with something. He didn't know what so he cut his message short.

I couldn't tell you anything he preached about. All I wanted to do was give my heart to Jesus. The preacher cut his message short and stepped in front of the pulpit and held his hands out in front of him and said if you want Jesus in your heart come up here. He didn't have to tell me twice.

I shot out of that pew and ran to him just as fast as I could go. If I had of been sitting in the back of the church, as fast as I was running, by the time I got to him I would have been going fast enough to knock both of us through

the wall behind him. The wall was a pretty good ways behind him.

My fingertips touched his fingertips and my knees gave out. I saw lightening and that's all I remember. The Holy Spirit picked me up and lay me ten feet to my left and picked the pastor up and laid him right beside me. We were both slain under the power of the Holy Spirit. Some people said that I never touched the floor. They said I was floating in thin air. The pastor woke up before I did and started praying over me.

When I woke up there we both were sitting on the floor in front of three hundred people and he was praying over me.

He held the microphone to my mouth and I tried to say I want Jesus in my heart but the supernatural gift of tongues was coming out. I shut my mouth and I said to myself I would try this again. So I opened my mouth the second time and tongues were coming out. I closed my mouth and said to myself I will try it again and see if I can say it in English. I opened my mouth and tried it a third time. Real slowly I said I - want - Jesus - in - my - heart. I managed to say it in English that time. I shut my mouth real quick before I started speaking in tongues again.

So while sitting on the floor in front of three hundred people the pastor led me into a sinner's prayer. That ended the church service and we had dinner at church after that.

Did Jesus save me at church that day? You better believe He did! Jesus took me back! The Bible says seek Me and you shall find Me and I searched God until I got Him in my heart again. My life changed instantly. I had more of the joy and the anointing of God than I had before I backslid. God had answered my prayers.

I couldn't keep my mouth shut. I was immediately telling everyone everywhere what Jesus had done for me and He wanted to do the same thing for them.

Since then Jesus has literally shown me that John 14:12 is true when Jesus said we can do the works He did plus more because He has gone to be with the Father.

I have signs and wonders following me everywhere I go. But before I could start walking in the fullness of God like He wanted me to He had some things He wanted to teach me so I would know how to do the works Jesus did plus more. Nevertheless, I didn't sit around and do nothing while God was teaching me.

I ministered to every person I could get my hands on. I believe the very minute you give your heart to Jesus you should start immediately telling everyone about Jesus and praying for every person that you have opportunity to pray for.

If you're a new Christian and you see someone hungry you're going to feed them. When you give someone food that is ministering. You're not going to tell a hungry person they have to wait till you've been a Christian for ten years before you're qualified to help them.

It works the same way for praying for the sick. Someone sick doesn't care how long you've been saved. They want and need a healing in their body and most people will not turn down prayer.

You're qualified the very minute you have Jesus in your heart. Don't let anyone convince you that you haven't been saved long enough for God to use.

#### Doing The Works Of Jesus, Plus More

#### **Chapter 4**

#### LEARNING THE SUPERNATURAL

**B**esides the Bible one of my favorite books that I just absolutely love is written by Charles and Frances Hunter. The name of it is "Supernatural Horizons". If you have never read it you are definitely missing some great testimonies and anointed teachings. That is one book that you just can't put down.

When you read it you will learn that you can live above the horizon into the supernatural realm twenty-four hours a day seven days a week. You find things in that book that you can apply to your daily life and you say if God can do things like that through one person He can do things supernatural like that through me. Your faith will rise beyond the horizon as you read about true supernatural accounts of God's power through Charles and Frances. You will see where Jesus has empowered us to do the supernatural works.

The spirit of the Lord is upon me, because He has anointed me to preach the

gospel to the poor. He has sent me to heal the brokenhearted, to preach deliverance to the captives and recovery of sight to the blind, to set at liberty those that are oppressed, to preach the acceptable year of the Lord. (Luke 4:18 NKJV).

I was lacking the knowledge of knowing how to flow in the gifts of the spirit so I started praying asking God to put people in my path that could teach me about the supernatural. I prayed earnestly for God to teach me how to lay hands on the sick and see them recover. I prayed for God to show me how to walk in the supernatural everyday. I had a great desire but I wanted to talk to someone that was doing that everyday. I wanted results when I prayed for the sick. I wanted to see them get healed. I wanted to see the blind eyes open, the lame man to walk, diabetes come out of people, arms and legs grow out, demons come out of people.

I wanted to see everyone I prayed for get healed. I knew there was a supernatural power out there and I could tap into it and I was determined to do the works of Jesus plus more.

Three weeks after I gave my heart back to God the pastor made an announcement that these healing evangelists named Charles and Frances Hunter would be coming to speak for a few days. I had never heard of them before but I knew all I needed to know and that was they knew about healings. I was definitely going to be there without a doubt. I couldn't wait because I was about to learn how to flow in the supernatural power of God.

That had to be the longest three weeks of my life as the anticipation built waiting for them to come and speak. I knew I was going to learn all I could while they were here. Little did I know that my life was about to be affected drastically by their visit.

I was running the soundboard at the church and I had a great glimpse of Charles & Frances Hunter while they were speaking. I even wore headphones to make sure I didn't miss a single solitary word. What they were saying was just supernatural. I couldn't believe what I was hearing. They said, "If God can do it we can to. If Charles & Frances Hunter can do it we can too". They were talking about doing the works Jesus did plus greater works than Jesus did. They were giving supernatural testimonies about people that had received a healing after they had laid hands on them.

I said, God this is it. You have answered my prayers. I didn't want them ever to leave town. I needed them. I didn't want them to go. I said I have got to find a way to stay in touch with these people even after they are gone.

Charles & Frances were teaching about the supernatural and I had to learn all I could from them and I was determined to. God also had a plan that I didn't know about at the time that included an ongoing relationship with the Hunters. God just kept on answering prayers.

Charles and Frances talked about a healing explosion that they were going to be conducting soon in Memphis, TN. In order to be on a healing team I had to read the two books, "How To Heal The Sick", and "Handbook For Healing", and watch the 15 hours of healing tapes.

I wanted to be on the healing team. I was determined to get qualified and be in Memphis. A few days went by and time was running out to get qualified. I prayed again because in the natural there was no way to go through all that material in so short a time. God has a way of working out every detail. It was supernatural.

It got down to three days before the Healing Explosion and I did not even have the books or the tapes. Where in the world could I get a copy of them? God knew the answer to that. If I had them how could I go through fifteen hours of video teaching and read two books in three days plus work my full time job. God had that worked out too in a way that you

would never imagine. Of course God has a supernatural way of doing things.

I talked to the pastor at church and asked if he knew how I could get the material. He said the Hunters left the books and the videotapes for the church to have a healing training service with. He said no one in the church was going to conduct the healing class. He said I was welcome to them but I had to return them in three days. He said they had to send the Material back to the Hunters. I agreed to have them back to the church in three days.

My employer called me at home that night and said Dale I have to be out of town for three days and all you need to do is just be here and answer the phone. He said if you want to you could bring a TV and a VCR and maybe some books to read to work. I said OK, I will. I hung the phone up and shouted Praise God. Thank You Jesus. There was my answer.

I went to work the next three days and took my TV, VCR and the two books to work with me. I was getting paid to go through the Hunter's material. That's the kind of God we serve. To make a long story short I went through half the tapes the first day and the second half the second day and read both books the third day and got paid for it. That's supernatural all together. That's what you call a

crash course.

The thing about it is my employer didn't even know anything about me wanting to go to the healing explosion in Memphis but God did. God not only knew I wanted to go but God wanted me to go. God ordained that whole thing.

Another thing God told me is Dale no one at the church is going to conduct the video healing school by The Hunters. He said I want you to do it in your home. I conducted many healing services in my home using their material. Lots of people came from the church and people that didn't even attend that church or any other church to attend my healing services. I turned my town upside down for Jesus using The Hunter's books and tapes and still doing it today.

The day of the healing explosion my employer said I want to give you one hundred dollars to make the trip with and you don't have to pay it back. He said all I want you to do is to ask Charles and Frances Hunter to pray for my family and I. I wrote down his prayer request and stuck it in my pocket.

After the first healing service in Memphis I gave the prayer request to Charles & Frances Hunter. Tell me God doesn't provide

everything. He provides for every little detail. I had prayed and asked God to give me an opportunity to give them the prayer requests and He did

At the healing explosion in Memphis I was on the healing team. Would you believe where God put me? I ministered to those in the wheel chair section. Can you believe that? Guess what I saw? I saw people get out of wheel chairs that hadn't walked in years. I saw deaf ears opening up. I saw people healed that had sicknesses for years. I was flowing in the supernatural power of God. I was doing the works of Jesus plus more because He commanded me to do that.

Better than that He empowered me to do that. I was learning how to lay hands on the sick and see them recover because He put Charles and Frances Hunter in my life. I still believe to this day that God had Charles and Frances come speak at our church just for me. As a result I started learning all I could from them and implement it in my town and everywhere I go.

#### Doing The Works Of Jesus, Plus More

## Chapter 5

# THE BEGINNING OF THE HEALING CLASS

After the Healing Explosion in Memphis, TN with Charles & Frances Hunter I kept learning all I could about laying hands on the sick and seeing them recover in the name of Jesus.

It wasn't long after that I started a healing class in my home using the Hunter's healing tapes and books. People came from all over the city including surrounding communities to come to the healing classes. Charles Hunter gave me some great advice that I quickly started using and still do to this day. He said, "Dale if you will show the healing tapes that we have, your ministry will grow like leaps and bounds, and you will turn your city upside down for Jesus". I took his advice and as a result many people have attended my healing classes.

During the classes we have every nationality, race, religious belief, those that are sick, some demon possessed come to learn how to lay hands on the sick and see them recover. We always show one hour of the healing tapes then we take a short break. After that we do another hour. After the second hour everyone practices on each other.

What makes it so successful is when you let everyone practice on each other. If you leave that one important area out they will not go out and lay hands on the sick when they leave your class. Charles & Frances have proven this to work.

Those who are sick get healed during the practice sessions. That is the students laying hands on the students and they recover. Those who are demon possessed get set free in The name of Jesus. During each session you may want to take an offering to help pay expenses and to give the students an opportunity to be blessed.

God says to bring your tithes and offerings into my storehouse that there may be meat in mine house. Malachi 3-8. If you are conducting the healing class you are providing meat. If you are a student you are receiving meat. So please don't neglect God's people the opportunity of giving.

There was one lady that wanted to attend

my healing classes but for some reason she never could. She knew exactly what time we started the first hour tape. She knew what time we took our short break and she knew what time we started the second hour tape. She even knew what time everyone practiced on each other.

She was at home during this one particular night during our healing class. At the exact time that we started practicing on each other she was at home praying believing God to heal her. She was agreeing with us for a healing and we didn't even know about it until later. She gave me a great testimony the day after this had happened. She was so happy she said I have got to tell you what happened last night while you all were having your practice session on each other. She said I was agreeing and I had warts all over my toes and feet and every one of them supernaturally fell off. She went on to tell me how she had taken her socks off and every one of the warts fell out of her socks. She was totally healed! Praise God!

We always have our healing classes on Thursday nights beginning at 7:00 PM. That seems to be a great time for most people because there are not too many other activities going on during that time. We usually use Charles & Frances Hunter's 15 hour healing

tapes.

After everyone has gone through them a couple of times each then we will do the 7-hour Advanced Healing class. A majority of the people who attend the healing classes attends them every time a new class starts because healings has become second nature to them and they want to go through these tapes over and over again. You will learn something new every time you go through them. They never get old or boring. Each time it is just as refreshing as it was the first time through. You will be just as excited conducting the healing class each time, as you were the first time around.

I get calls all the time to pray for the sick and I have signs and wonders following me everywhere I go. I have seen people healed of just about everything you can think of by the power of God.

I have since then started a healing class on the Internet using Charles & Frances Hunter's tapes with hundreds of people in attendance literally worldwide. The anointing just keeps getting stronger and God keeps opening doors. When you tell God that you're available for Him to use, as He wants to, be ready for doors to open.

How do you start laying hands on the sick and seeing them recover? If you're just starting out it may be a little difficult for you to cast a spirit of cancer out of someone or even for you to pray for arms and legs to grow out. One of the best ways I know of to start ministering to the sick is to pray for those with a headache. That way you won't know if they got healed because you just laid hands on them or if their headache was about to leave anyway.

As you pray for small problems and see them recover you will easily be able to move on to more complicated sicknesses and diseases. It's not that one thing is easier for God to heal than another one is. They are all easy for God.

We as humans tend to have a need to adjust when we do something new. We have to build our confidence so that we will know how to minister to the sick. Our faith will need to be built. We are building integrity in God's Word. As you lay hands on more and more people you will notice that it becomes second nature to you and you want to lay hands on everything that moves.

By the time you finish a healing class you will be so on fire for God that you will know beyond any shadow of a doubt that when you lay hands on people they will be healed. You will not just pray for those that ask you for

prayer but rather you will let them know real quick that you can pray for them and they can be healed.

You will notice that the more you pray for others the stronger your faith, confidence and even the anointing will get.

I remember one day I went to a convenience store and I waited my turn in line. The cashier checked out each person and when I got to the cash register the first thing she said was I have an awful headache. Why didn't she mention that to some of the other people who were in front of me? It's because the power of the Holy Spirit radiates from your body. The stronger the anointing gets the further the power radiates from you.

When Jesus walked to the tombs the lunatic came running out. Jesus had not made it to the tombs yet but His power did. His power precedes Him and he came running out and said Jesus of Nazareth what have You to do with me. Jesus commanded the devils to come out of him.

The same thing happened in the store with the cashier. The power radiated from my body and the devils recognized it and manifested. I said I can pray for you and Jesus will heal you. The cashier said OK and I laid

my hands across the counter on her head and commanded the spirit of headache to leave and told her to be healed in the name of Jesus. She immediately started laughing saying I'm healed I'm healed. There was a whole line of people behind me but that didn't stop me from ministering.

That same day I went to another convenience store and identically the same thing happened with another cashier. The clerk didn't say anything to anyone in line but just as soon as I stepped in front of her she said I have a headache. I said silently to God, what would you do? He told me to do what He would do. I already knew what God would do so I told the cashier I could pray and God would heal her. She quickly agreed and when I lay my hands on her head and prayed the same prayer I prayed at the other convenience store she started laughing in the same way and said I'm healed, I'm healed.

To make a long story short the same thing happened at a third convenience store in the same day and that clerk was healed the same way.

The power of the Holy Spirit will radiate from your body and intensify if you will flow in the gifts and allow God to use you anytime He wants to. Don't be afraid to pray for people no matter where you are. God can heal people anywhere and He needs willing vessels like us to do it with. The only thing we have to do each day is to make ourselves available for God to use in whichever ways He wants to.

If you are wanting to start or expand your ministry or church the best way I can think of is to start a healing class in your home or church using Charles and Frances Hunters teaching tapes and you will see God do supernatural things in ways you never thought possible. As you do that you will experience an increase in the anointing on your life and ministry. Before you know it God has opened another door for you to minister His word by witnessing to the lost and laying hands on the sick and seeing them recover.

# Chapter 6

# GOD YOU'VE GOT THE WRONG PERSON

One night I was in bed almost asleep. I lived in the country with no streetlights and when the sun went down it was what you call really dark. The stars in the sky were very clear unlike in the big cities. As I was about to go into a deep sleep I saw a light then I heard a flash like it was the flash of a camera taking a snapshot. I then saw a picture of me in color right before my eyes. It was a picture of me holding a microphone on television introducing my guests who included the person I was interviewing and a gospel-singing group. I sat straight up in the bed and I said God what was that? He said that was you on Christian TV hosting a TV show. I got out of bed and turned my light on and I gave God one million and one reasons why I couldn't do that.

I told God that I had no vehicle. I said I don't know how to host a TV show, even if I had my own TV show I wouldn't know how to

interview people, God I don't know where a Christian TV station is, etc. I went on and on about why I was not qualified. I said God you've got the wrong person for the job. This went on for about fifteen minutes with me giving God every reason in the book why I couldn't host the TV show. After I ran out of every reason I could think of God said I want you to host it. I said, OK God, I'll host it only if you provide all of the details. If you will show me where the TV station is, if you give me transportation there and back, if you provide my guests, if you will do all of that I will host it but I still say you have the wrong person for the job.

Do you think that moved God? That didn't move God not one little bit! All I want to do is please God and God knew that. He had all of the details worked out and I was soon about to find that out. With that I went right off to sleep. God will also make you want to do what He wants you to do.

The next morning when I woke up I was still thinking about what God and I had discussed just last night. I had a feeling that something was going to happen that day with the TV show. God doesn't waste any time. Within one hour after I had woke up I had the name, address and phone number of a Christian

TV station located in Booneville, MS. I had the Presidents name and home phone number of the TV station. I called the TV station and asked to speak with the President. They told me that he was at home and wasn't due in for a couple of hours. They said I could call him at home so I did. His wife answered the phone and I asked to speak to him. She said he's in bed asleep but hold on a minute and she would wake him up. I told her that would be OK that I could call back later. She said to hold on that he needed to wake up anyway.

He came to the phone and I went on to tell him about the conversation that God and I had the night before about me hosting a show. He listened as I gave him all the details. When I finished with my story he said well, we don't have anyone at the TV station that knows how to interview people.

He asked me to schedule to go live on the air with him and his wife as they interview me on my testimony. I said let me pray about it and I will call you back. I prayed for a few minutes and God told me to call him back and tell him I could be there in two weeks on a Thursday for a live interview on TV. I called him right back and he said that would be a good time for them. I was put on the schedule for two weeks from then.

I arrived at the TV station as scheduled and I was interviewed for two hours non stop about my testimony by Lealon and Jewell Owens, the President and Vice-President of TV-53 in Booneville, MS. It is now called TV-34. While we were still live on the air Lealon Owens asked me if I would like to have my own Christian TV show there on a weekly basis interviewing people and having singers on. I looked at him then I looked at Jewell then I looked right into the cameras then I looked at them again and I said I'll do it but I'll tell you like I told God, you have the wrong person for the job. I told them that right there live on TV. He said I'll give you two weeks to get your first show put together then after that you can do one live show a week.

Believe me it took every bit of two weeks to get the first show put together and it was a total success. I lined up a singing group and a guest to interview. When time came to go live on the air they said lights, camera, action and I was ready. We were going out to several thousand viewers at one time. We got a lot of phone calls right off. Everyone loved the show and I had no idea what I was doing except I knew I was obeying God. All it took was obedience.

I have interviewed some of the most

prominent men and women on live TV. I've had some of the best-known singers and groups that you could ever ask for live on TV. I've interviewed many politicians live on TV; I've done newscasts and weather for the TV station. I've managed the whole TV station. I have done every job that can be done at a TV station including selling, producing and editing TV commercials.

I've quickly become known as one of the best commercial producers and editors in this part of the country. My TV show is now one of the fastest growing syndicated shows around anywhere because I obeyed God. Was I qualified? I sure was because whom God calls He qualifies and equips.

The show is a radio and TV show. God sets it in place. I take many people who have talent and something to share to the world about God that would never otherwise have an opportunity to get a start in life. I take them and put them on radio and TV and that is how many ministries have started; right they're on my show because God told me to put them on.

As far as all of the reasons I gave God why I couldn't host the show to start with well God worked all of that out. I never lacked transportation to and from the TV station. I never wondered whom to have as my guest on

TV because God always showed them to me. I've never been late for a show. I knew how to host a show because God called me to do it and He gave me the anointing to do it. God will call those whom no one else would normally call. But God's ways are not man's ways. Praise God for that or none of us would ever have a chance on life if it were left up to man to call us to the ministry.

I take live call-ins on my shows and I pray for the sick and they get healed. I've had the healing class on radio and TV using Charles & Frances Hunter's healing tapes. People are always giving their hearts to Jesus on my shows and people are always getting healed during my shows. This is one show that is on fire for Jesus! This show is there for you to be blessed all because God was able to get me to agree to do what He called me to do. Aren't you glad? I am!

All of the thousands and thousands of people who receive many blessings during my show will be quick to tell you that all you have to do is tune in and you can't help but be blessed in one way or another.

I do a lot of teaching, preaching and ministering on television, radio, my website and anywhere I can get an open door. I remember one day I was hosting a show and a lady called in for prayer. I had never heard her name mentioned over the air before. I took her prayer request and started praying over the airwaves. Just as I was about to really get into an anointed prayer for her God spoke to me so I called out the word of knowledge God told me to call out. I said your husband is getting ready for openheart surgery. I said he would not have to have that heart surgery at the hospital because God is placing a brand new heart into his body right now. Then I proceeded to pray for her request.

That was all I heard about that until the next week. I went back to the TV station the following week and was doing another show and she called in again to testify. The word of knowledge was right on. It was definitely for her husband. He had already been scheduled for heart surgery. God placed a brand new heart into him the week before when I prayed and the doctors confirmed it the next day at the hospital. When God does a job and a healing He does it right Amen!

How do I get great results when I pray for the sick? I'll be glad to tell you. It's because I use what I have learned in Charles & Frances Hunter's healing classes entitled How To Heal The Sick. These are ways you can lay hands on the sick and see them recover in the name of Jesus. They work. It's just like I've heard Charles and Frances Hunter say so many times, "You take what you learn from them and you take what you already know and that makes you twice as smart and doubly anointed". You are in a win-win situation for everyone you minister to when you go through their healing class.

I'll never forget one particular show I was doing when this lady called me up and gave me a testimony over the phone after the show. She said Bro. Dale I need to share this with you, so she proceeded to share a little about what God had done in her life as a result of her watching one of my shows.

I had her come to the TV station so she could go live on the air and share her testimony. She and her husband came out and gave a great testimony. This is it: She said that she never would watch my show. She never did like me and anytime she saw me come on TV the first thing she would do is to either turn the volume all the way down and work in the kitchen till she knew I was off the air or she would change the TV channel to something else.

This particular day she walked in her house and when she walked in her living room the first person she saw was I on her TV set. She went toward the TV and was just about to change the channel. About that time I pointed my finger at the camera and I said don't turn

that dial because what I say today will change your life forever. She thought about it real quick and decided she'd better leave it there and at least listen for a few minutes. She sat down on her couch and was listening.

I looked straight in that camera again and I said you just walked in the house from the doctor's office and you have swelling in the legs and ankles and you have pain in your and the doctors can't find your stomach problem. I said in fact you've seen three doctors for the same thing and they can't find the problem. About that time I prayed for her and God healed her. Every bit of the pain and swelling went down in her stomach and legs and ankles. The pain was totally healed. The doctors couldn't heal her much less diagnose her. They had no idea what the problem even was but God did. As a result of that she and her husband started writing songs and got into a full time singing ministry traveling around the country ministering in testimony and song. They are a mighty blessing to the body of Christ.

It has been over 19 years since God told me to start hosting a Christian TV talks show. Does it last? You better believe it does! When God calls you to do something it lasts because He gives you the anointing to do it with. Let God be the truth and every man a liar.

Anytime God tells you He has a plan for you it is best to just say OK God I will do it even if you don't feel like you are qualified because He will qualify you even if it seems impossible. It's good to walk in the calling God has placed you in. Continue to do what God has you doing and He will open doors that no man can close and He will close doors that no man can open.

## Chapter 7

### CONTROLLING WEATHER

"And God blessed them, and God said unto them, be fruitful, and multiply, and replenish the earth, and subdue it; and have dominion over the fish of the sea, and over the fowl of the air, and over every living thing that moves upon the earth. Genesis 1:28 that means that we have dominion because God gave it to us.

Did you notice that humans are the only ones that are made in His image and everything else was made after their likeness? What an awesome God we have that selected mankind to be made in His image but not only that but to give us dominion over every thing else.

If you see something in The Bible that Jesus did you can do it too plus more. John 14:12 says Verily, verily I say unto you, He that believeth on me, the works that I do shall he do also; and greater works than these shall he do; because I go unto my Father.

One of the things that Jesus did if you will recall is to calm the storm when the disciples woke Him up and said Master we perish. He woke up and rebuked the winds. The winds ceased immediately and the storm ceased. He said oh ye of little faith.

We can control the weather too when Jesus tells us to. Of course you can't just go around controlling when it's going to rain or not rain or snow or not snow simply just because you want to do it. You need a reason to do it that will lift up the name of Jesus. When Jesus tells you to do it then you know it will work but it will still take faith on your part. Let me tell you about such an event that happened with me.

This happened at a local park in my community a few short years ago. It is very powerful. Had I not listened to God it could have been a total disaster. Believe me it did take faith for me to do what I'm about to tell you. Faith moves mountains and also is what gets God's attention. Without faith it is impossible to please Him.

I was scheduling a gospel music singing and preaching at the pavilion for two days in a row at a local lake. I had run a full-page ad in the local newspaper telling who was going to be singing and who was going to be the speaker and giving all of the details. I was the scheduled speaker for both days and had plenty of singers lined up. The event was to take place all day on a Saturday and Sunday.

We got all set up with the equipment and the singing and preaching was underway. There was traffic as far as you could see parked on the street and the park was packed full of people. There were people on the side of the lake we were on and there were people on the other side of the lake. We had the perfect setup to minister to the multitudes at one time.

Everything was going real good until all of a sudden a cloud came up coming in our direction from the other side of the lake. I could see all the rain it was dropping as it made it's way toward us. Some of the people on the other side of the lake rushed to their vehicles and left. Many of them came to the side of the lake we were on because the rain hadn't made its way to our side. I had my DJ system set up and it would have been no way to cover it up in time to keep it from getting wet.

There was really nothing that could be done but to pray. So pray I did. Just as I started praying God told me what to do. This is what I did. By that time the rain had made it's way half way across the lake coming toward us. The rain was very heavy and the cloud was thick. I held my hands up toward the cloud and I

wanted everyone to hear me.

I got on the microphone with my hands toward the rain cloud and I said, "Satan I bind you up in the name of Jesus and I command you to flee in the name of Jesus. I said winds I command you to cease in the name of Jesus. Rain I command you to stop in the name of Jesus. I said Thank You Jesus". With that the preaching and music continued without thinking another thing about the rain because I knew it was a done deal.

The rain kept pouring down just as fast and the cloud was just as thick but it didn't come any closer to our side. It stayed half way across the lake.

We continued for about another hour with it like that when an elderly lady came walking through the park and stopped right in front of me. She said my name is such and such and I'm from Texas down here visiting. I just got from church and I came to the park to enjoy myself and I would appreciate it if you would turn that preaching and singing off. If I want to hear some more of this I will go back to church she said. I said lady I'm sorry but I have the park rented and I can't turn it off because we're having church here. She said fine, I know the mayor and I'll call him and he will send someone out here to make you turn it off. I said

#### Controlling Weather

you do what you have to do and I'll do what I have to do but I'm not turning it off. With that she walked off.

We continued what we were doing with the rain still coming down half way across the lake and to the other side but it wasn't coming any closer to our side of the lake.

A few minutes later a couple of policeman came up to me and asked if we had this event in the newspaper. I told them that I had a full-page ad for both days. They said since you have it in the paper there's not anything we can do but I need to ask you to turn it down a little bit. I turned it down a little. He said I need you to turn it down a little more. I turned it down a little more. He said that will be fine.

They started walking off and just before they got out of voice range one of them turned around and said I don't know if you realize it or not but when you rented the park you only rented from here to half way across the lake.

About that time I turned around and it was still pouring down rain halfway across the lake and over but not toward our side. That's when it hit me that God had me wait till the rain got halfway across the lake before He had me to tell it to stop right there. It's because I didn't

have authority beyond that point. I could only operate in my boundaries. Even though I didn't know exactly what all I had rented God did.

We had two brothers that gave their hearts to Jesus out there that day and they went home and got their mother and she gave her heart to Jesus out there. The mother has married since then. She was already a nurse but since she married they have moved to Mexico and she has become a traveling nurse for Jesus. One of the sons went to the Philippines as a missionary and the other son went to live with his father in the military. So you see when you spread God's word you are helping others to give their hearts to Jesus then they go forth and win others to Jesus.

It rained like that all day long but it never did come any closer to us. When we finished for the day and had all the equipment packed in the van and were pulling out I told the driver to stop for a minute and turn around and watch this. He stopped and I pointed my hands toward the rain and the cloud and I said in the name of Jesus rain and cloud come to this side of the lake. As soon as I did that it moved to our side of the lake and began pouring down rain where we had been ministering from all day. He just sat there with his mouth open and said I wish I could do that. I said you can do it

## Controlling Weather

when God tells you to. Don't hesitate but pray; believing and it shall be done.

I challenge you to really put your faith in God and when you're in a situation that requires what may seem to be a little extra faith on your part don't let that stop you. Faith can move mountains and the more you use it the more testimonies you get.

# Doing The Works Of Jesus, Plus More

### **Chapter 8**

#### SUPERNATURAL TRANSLATIONS

I believe God can do anything at anytime. We serve a God that is so powerful that there is literally nothing He can't do. Imagine a God so big and powerful that all He had to do was just speak the word and the universe was created. A God that can and did take the dirt from the ground and create a man can certainly do anything. A God that can do that can surely heal a broken heart, a broken bone, place a new heart in a body, heal arthritis, cancer, diabetes, asthma, and every kind of sickness, disease and infirmity known to man and even those not known to man: definitely do anything no matter impossible it may seem to mankind.

I believe if I was 50,000 feet in the air and the plane caught on fire or some other mishap happened that God could tell me to jump toward the ground and I would jump and I would instantly be standing on the ground. It's all a matter of doing the impossible when God tells you to do it. Make sure you don't attempt

anything like that unless you know for sure God has specifically spoken to you and told you to. As you obey God He will confirm His word with signs following. Mark 16:19.

What if you're in a vehicle and God decides to translate you and your vehicle supernaturally to another location to protect you. He can do that too. Let me give you a great testimony on how God did that with my car and me. The Bible says Jesus got into a boat and immediately He was on the other side. He supernaturally translated Himself.

This all started out as a dream while I was sleeping. In my dream I was in a truck with someone going down an old country road. We had gone just a little ways when I noticed a car just ahead that had smoke coming out of it. I couldn't tell what part of the car was smoking. We got out of the truck and walked toward the car. When we got a short distance from it I recognized it and "That's my car"! I saw smoke coming from the very top of the car. Then I noticed power lines had fallen all over the top of my car and it was smoking like nothing I had ever seen before. I told my friend, "God has it under control, and we can go". I immediately put it in God's hands because He does a much better job of taking care of my problems than I can do. So we

# **Supernatural Translations**

turned around and headed back to the truck. As we started to drive off I woke up and that ended my dream.

I got out of bed and got ready for work. That dream was heavy in my spirit but I couldn't make out what it meant. I felt like there had to be some kind of reason for me to have that dream and then for it to be so heavy in my spirit.

I got in my car and headed toward work. I took the same route to work that I always took. I could have almost driven it blindfolded. That's how well I knew the roads that I drove to work. In fact that's the only route that I had taken and didn't know the back roads to work.

I was still thinking about the dream I had on my way to work. I had driven about half way to work when all of a sudden it seemed like I had lost a split second in there somewhere. What had just happened? It's almost like it felt like I had just lost all sense of time and everything. I had to get my thoughts together. God had translated my automobile and me.

It had happened so fast. Maybe the speed of it happening caused me to lose a second. Actually I think it took less than one second for God to translate me. It didn't take me long to figure out that God had placed me

on another street, but why would He do that? I didn't know that street. It was a small country road. Where was I? What year was it? What town was I in? Even better than that what part of the world did He just take me to? All of a sudden God reminded me of the dream I had before I woke up about the power lines falling on my car.

Then I know exactly what had just happened. I had definitely been translated to protect my car and me. I knew what was going on but where was I? I didn't think God would cause me to miss work because of that so I prayed. I said God I don't know these Streets so you're going to have to show me when to turn and help me get to work on time.

The very next road coming up I saw an arrow in the sky that God had placed there for me. The arrow was pointing to the right. I said ok, there is a street and there is an arrow so God must want me to turn right. I turned right and the next street to the left had an arrow in the sky pointing to the left. I turned to the left. God used arrows in the sky to get me to work. I knew why this was happening. It was to keep power lines from falling on my car. I knew all of the details would unfold in due season. I just had to do everything God told me to do and I would be fine.

# **Supernatural Translations**

I got to work and didn't say a word to anyone. I did my job but couldn't stop thinking about the dream I had or about God translating me on the way to work. This was so supernatural. I had heard of supernatural translations before but only in books and movies. I had read about it in one of Charles & Frances Hunter's books before. The name of the book is Supernatural Horizons. I had never actually thought about something like this ever happening to me.

When it came break time at work I wanted to leave and go to the store. I got in my car and got to the end of the driveway and started to go the same way I do everyday. God said no, not yet. He said I want you to go the same way you came to work this morning. I said God I don't know those roads. I don't even know which way to turn. God said I would show you.

He used the arrows to show me each turn again. The arrows He placed in the sky for me were lit up and they were big. I guess He really wanted to make sure I saw them. I made it to the store fine. God said I want you to go back to work the same way you went this morning. He showed me the arrows in the sky again to show me how to get back to work. I made it to work fine with no problems at all.

I worked the rest of the day and when it came time to go home God said now you can take your regular route home that you normally take. I was kind of hesitant for a second and then I made a right turn to go my regular route. I didn't get very far when I saw power trucks from the electric company lined up bumper to bumper all the way down the street as far as I could see. Then it all came into full focus. They had been repairing fallen power lines all day. This was what I saw in my dream last night and this is the destruction God delivered me from.

I believe if God had not translated me that morning on my way to work that those power lines would have fallen on the top of my car and who knows what damage would have been done to my car and to me? God knew what lied ahead and He knew exactly what He was going to do to protect me. He knew how to prepare me for it by giving me that dream and allowing it to stay so heavy in my spirit.

# Chapter 9

# THE HEALING OF BACK PROBLEMS

Have you ever had a time in your life and ministry where it seemed that everyone you prayed for got healed but no matter how many people prayed for you your healing just would not manifest? That happened to me when I hurt my back. This is an exciting testimony of how God supernaturally healed my back.

No one knows exactly why not everyone receives a healing. There are many different reasons why that is. I will say this much, if you're believing God for a healing keep praying for everyone else including yourself. Don't love hope because what you sow is what you reap. Let me tell you about such a powerful manifestation of God's healing power.

I was working in a factory and everything was going good until I was carrying a shoulder full of material on the way to my worktable. There was material all over the floor that often happens when you're working. Just

as I was about to get to the table and unload the material I stepped into a hole in the floor that I couldn't see because it was all covered in the poly foam. When I stepped in it I fell backwards and my back fell into the sharp pointed valve that was mounted underneath my table. The center part of my back hit the valve under the table right between my shoulder blades. My head went all the way back and then I hit the floor. I came up off of the floor and stood up on my feet faster than I hit the floor. There were several people who saw this happen.

I went about my regular work duties and everything seemed to be ok. After about fifteen minutes I started feeling pain and some numbness throughout my body. I went to the office and reported it and they took me to the doctor's office. That started regular visits to the doctor because I had to eventually get my own doctor and I was diagnosed with whiplash in my neck and I had slipped five discs in my back.

My pain very shortly got to where it was severe twenty four hours a day seven days a week. I couldn't lie down, sit down, stand up or walk without severe pain. I ended up seeing a medical doctor two to five times a week and a chiropractor many times three to five times per

day. I was on a lot of pain medication all the time, which didn't do much good. When I would see the chiropractor it would bring relief for a couple of hours and then I would have to go back for another adjustment.

During this time I prayed for many people with back problems and they would get healed. I would grow out arms and legs in the name of Jesus and miracles were happening in other people's lives. I prayed for myself and I had a lot of people praying for me but I only seemed to get worst. The doctor told me he wanted to schedule me for back surgery. I started doing my research about back operations and found out that only one percent of people who had back operations experienced success. The rest of them from what I was reading about had to keep going back for more back surgeries and many of them were getting addicted to their medication.

I would go on television and host my TV show live over the air every week. My viewing audience didn't know that I was in severe pain during my TV shows because I never mentioned it to them. I didn't see much need in mentioning it because God is the One Who was going to heal me anyway and God already knew about it. My audience thought I was having the best time of my life and actually I was because I

really enjoy hosting TV shows. I told them about it after I got healed because I now had another powerful testimony for God.

I told my family that I wanted to go to the next healing explosion with Charles and Frances Hunter and I believed God was going to heal me there. They agreed and I contacted The Hunters to find out where they were going to be next. They were going to be conducting a healing explosion at Marilyn Hickeys church in Denver, Colorado. That's a thirty-six and a half hour drive from where we were living. That's not counting anything except the driving time. Still, that was possible for God so we started making plans to attend.

Each day that drew closer my faith was building because I knew without a doubt that I was going to be healed. Could God heal me if I didn't go to Denver? Couldn't He heal me if I just stayed where I was and received my healing? The answer to both of those questions is yes. God can heal me anywhere. But God's plan was for me to be in Denver, Colorado. I had tried everything I knew to try and I was only getting worst up the point of back surgery and I was determined my back surgery was going to be supernaturally done by God. Plus it was like a point of contact for me. By that time I had my faith in that I would be healed when

Charles and Frances laid hands on me. I had seen so many people get healed and I knew it was going to happen to me. I had already been to many of their healing explosions and I knew the way that God healed people during their services. Another thing is I was planting seeds every time I prayed for other people and I knew my harvest was ripe and I was about to reap my harvest. If you need a healing in your body you have to sow seeds and those seeds will grow and one day you will have a ripe harvest that you can reap from.

My family and I headed to Marilyn Hickeys church for what was about to be the greatest thing we could have done. It was very painful driving all the way to Denver, Colorado with all the problems going on in my back and neck but I kept going anyway. When we arrived at the church the service was already underway and door greeters met us at the door and said we've been looking for you, follow us. They led us to the second row from the front and seated us directly behind Charles and Frances Hunter and Marilyn Hickey and her family.

I didn't get an opportunity to get them to pray for me during the service so I saw Charles Hunter and Dr Roy Leroy standing in the hallway afterwards. I went up to them and they already knew I had back problems so all I had to do was mention it and both of them went to work on me. Dr Leroy is a retired chiropractor and he wanted to do his examination on my back standing in the hallway.

He grabbed a hold of my left arm and Charles got a hold of my right arm and Dr LeRoy said when I tell you to I want you to take a deep breath and hold it till I tell you to let it out, then I want you to let it out slowly. I did as he instructed and he quickly discovered that my whole back was separated. I couldn't believe it but he said we could get it back in place.

He said the right side and the left side of my whole back had come apart. When he did his adjustment standing there in the hall I felt my back come back together like it was supposed to be. My pain left instantly. They then said a prayer over me asking God to heal me totally. I was pain free for the rest of their healing explosion. Thank you Jesus!

I was even pain free all the way back home. That was a whole lot better than all the pain I had on the way there. I just knew God was going to heal me.

When I got back home I had an appointment with my medical doctor and also my chiropractor. I kept both appointments as

scheduled. My medical doctor did his examination and he said you are healed. He said I don't see anything wrong with you. So that was my last visit with him. Even doctors will confirm a healing. I went to my chiropractor and she did her examination and she told me the same thing. She said I don't know what happened but your x-rays look real good and I don't think you need to come here anymore.

I told her about the examination that Dr Roy LeRoy and Charles Hunter did on my back and how they discovered my back was separated and how they put my back in place by a simple adjustment. She then contacted Dr LeRoy and found out how he did that examination so she could start doing it on her patients.

I was released from both my medical doctor and my chiropractor the very next day after I arrived home from the healing service.

My pain did come back every now and then but not very often after that. Do you know what I did to get rid of it? No matter what time the pain came back I would go to the nearest convenience store, restaurant and just about anywhere I could find people. I would tell them about my healing. Do you see where I'm going with this? We are overcome by the blood of the

lamb and by the word of our testimony. That really works.

I would tell someone about it and as I was telling them my pain would leave again. Then I would go back home. I very often told people about my healing but especially when the pain came back because I knew how to get rid of it.

You should try giving a testimony about the healing that you have believed God for. You may find that the healing is already there and now all you need to do is just tell everyone.

Sometimes it would be weeks before the pain came back again but when it did I would go tell someone about my healing and in every case those people would get me to pray for them and they would be healed too.

The devil has tricks but I turned his tactics on him and won people to God. When the enemy intends for evil God can use it for good. After about a year the pain in my back stopped totally. It was a miracle and a healing at the same time.

There are times that I've had crews working for me in construction work and when someone hurt their back instead of them going to the doctor I would grow out their arms and

#### The Healing Of Back Problems

legs and do the neck thing on them in the name of Jesus and their pain would leave instantly. Then the next time they pulled a muscle or hurt their back I prayed for them again. That sure saves on a lot of doctor bills but better than that God can and will heal people when you pray for them because His Word says so.

I have heard many similar testimonies especially in the construction field where people often hurt their back and God will have someone at that work site to minister healing to them and it works all the time. If places of business will do that more often they will have much better production and more saved employees and the work place would be much better all the way around.

# Doing The Works Of Jesus, Plus More

## Chapter 10

# GODS SUPERNATURAL PROVISIONS

As you know we are to give God thanks in all things. I always try to do that even in bad situations. One good example is the time when I hit my finger on something and it hurt real badly. What did I do? I may be different than most people on this but I immediately said, thank you Jesus that I just hit my finger". Then I said, "thank you Jesus that I have pain and thank you Jesus that the pain is now gone". Then I started praying in tongues. The pain left immediately.

Do you think the pain would have left if I had of complained about it or didn't thank Jesus for it? I'm sure it would have eventually gone away but not near as fast as it did. When you give God thanks in all things your life tends to go a whole lot better.

God often works through people to provide things that I need and I always thank Jesus for providing. God loves giving things to me because He gets them through me. Once you learn that God wants to work through you in every way you will literally tap into all the promises and provisions He has for you. Jesus has already given everything to us that the Father gave Him now all we have to do is receive it. God loves working through people because it brings Glory to His Sons name. God is capable of supernaturally providing your needs even without going through a human being. When someone allows God to work through him or her that person has a testimony.

You would think that everyone would be grateful that you're thanking Jesus for providing for you but not everyone sees it that way.

I remember one time this person allowed God to use her to provide funds that was needed. She seemed to be doing it out of a joyful heart. Her attitude completely changed when I said thank you Jesus and I thanked her for allowing God to use her. Can you believe she got so upset with me that she could have bitten a nail into? She said God didn't provide that for you I did. I said God worked through you to provide for me. She went on to tell me not to give God credit for that because she was the one that worked hard for that money. I reminded her that it was God that gave her that job and the strength to do the job. She never

did see it that way even after I continued to give God the credit.

It's a sad thing that many people haven't learned to thank Jesus for their provisions. I've had people ask me do I give God credit for everything and wanted to know if I ever give myself credit instead of giving it to all to God. I always let them know real quickly that all credit, praise, honor and glory go to God and not to me. I'll say it again, "thank you Jesus for providing those funds that I needed". I said it according to the Bible and as far as I'm concerned that settles it in earth and in Heaven.

How about a great testimony where God provided something that I prayed for and it was answered fast? Have you ever wished that God would answer you a little faster? Read on.

Hosting a Christian TV show I have to make copies of my programs for other people as well as for TV stations. Well, this one particular day I was a little short of equipment to make my recordings so I prayed for God to give me a television set and two VCR's so I could record more copies at one time. No one on the face of the earth knew I needed them or that I even prayed for them. God knew and that was good enough for me. I prayed asking God to provide and I knew He was going to provide.

The next day a friend came over and said come and go with me, and you will see where we're going after we get there. I didn't know if I wanted to go or not. I love invitations to places but who wants to go with someone with an invitation like that? If he hadn't been a friend I probably would have questioned him some before deciding whether I wanted to go or not.

I said ok and I got in the truck and we were off. We ended up at an electronics store. After he turned the truck off he said God told me to buy you a TV and two VCR's. He said you can pick out what you want just don't make it too expensive. I said thank you Jesus. That brought joy to his heart to hear me thank Jesus for providing what I was about to receive.

I have a direct hotline to Heaven and I let God know what I needed and God searched the earth looking for someone that would allow Him to work through them. My friend that bought it told me later how much God had really blessed him as a result of him obeying God to do that. He was blessed in a huge way financially as a result. See what happens when you obey God and do it with a cheerful heart and you give thanks to God for providing?

Take for example, the ten lepers in the Bible that Jesus healed. One of them came back and thanked Jesus for healing him. After he did

that Jesus said now be made whole. The other nine were healed but the man that thanked Jesus was also made whole. That's what being thankful will do for you. It will bring additional blessings to you and your life in every aspect. I encourage you to be thankful to God in all things. Let me tell you about when God provided in a great and mighty way while I was ministering to the needs of someone else.

Charles and Frances Hunter were having a healing explosion in Kansas and I borrowed the van from the church that I was attending at that time to attend. My cousin and I headed to Kansas to be a part of it. You're going to absolutely love the way God provided on this trip.

I had ministered the baptism of the Holy Ghost to my cousin with the evidence of speaking in other tongues and also introduced him to the teachings of Charles and Frances. Now he wanted to meet them in person.

Has God ever put it in your heart to go somewhere or do something and in the natural you didn't have what you needed to do it with and all you had was your faith in God? When that happens what do you do? The best thing I can think of is to do it by faith. When God tells you to do something you can believe God has already provided. When God provides like that

you may as well forget trying to see it with your natural eyes because you're not going to see it. You have to look in the spirit realm. Here is such a story:

I really enjoy attending the Hunters services because there are always so many exciting miracles and healings take place all over the audience. It never fails; God shows up and people's lives are supernaturally touched and their life is changed dramatically. One touch from God will do that to you. I have been with Charles and Frances Hunter during their healing service practically all across the United States. Once you attend just one you won't stop there, you will keep going to more. Better than that you take it back to the town you live in and you implement what happened at their services to the sick and hurting people in your own community.

The church loaned me the van to go to Kansas to the healing explosion and my cousin and I took off with very little funds on us to make the trip with. We prayed about it and asked God to provide because we really felt like He wanted us to be there. We lived four States away and it was to be a long trip. One thing we hadn't counted on either was the toll bridges that we would find out about soon enough. Those things want money too and you don't go

through them until you pay the toll.

We had a nice drive to Kansas and on the way there every time we saw a toll bridge up ahead we would pull the van over to the side of the highway and search the van for money. Can you believe that in every case we found just enough money to get through the toll coming up? We would pay the toll and when we saw another toll bridge coming up we would search the van again and find just enough money for that toll.

If I remember right we always found the money in the same place that we did for the previous toll. I believe God was supernaturally placing just the amount that we needed each time for the toll bridges. I can just see God saying, "OK, now you need \$1.25 for the next toll so it will be right here when you get ready for it". After we made it through all of the toll bridges we didn't find any more money. Thank you Jesus for providing the money for each toll bridge. Read on to see more things God provided during this trip. It gets better.

We made it to Kansas with no problems and we were having a great time. We were on the healing teams and ministered to many people for healing of many types of sicknesses and diseases. We saw people get healed right before our eyes. It was just supernatural. The Hunters had a victory breakfast the morning after the big night of the healing explosion. During the meeting the day before the victory breakfast Frances was speaking and she stopped for a minute and looked me right in the eyes. She said Dale have you purchased your ticket for tomorrow? I said no. She said I want you to be there and I will be taking care of the ticket God knew I wanted to be there and didn't have the funds for the breakfast but like I said I have a hot line to Heaven. God took care of it.

The next morning my cousin Grant and I were at the victory breakfast. I guess this will be a good place to tell this part. We were a few hundred miles from home and I had eleven dollars on me and we had a quarter tank of gas. Grant didn't have any money on him. We totally went by faith as I had mentioned earlier. That much gas in a van won't get you to Oklahoma, the next city outside of Kansas. It didn't bother us because we know who our provider is who is God.

The breakfast the next morning was great and Frances got up to do a final teaching before everyone was to be dismissed to go back home. While Frances was talking God spoke to me and told me to give all the money I had in the offering when they took it up. Immediately Frances made an announcement on the microphone. She said God just spoke to me and told me to tell everyone in here to give all you have in the offering and God is going to do a miracle in your life. I immediately had my confirmation.

I put all eleven dollars in the offering when it came around. That left us with no money at all for gas, food or anything and yet my faith was in God. Faith will move mountains. Faith will get God's attention. All you have to do is to do each day what He tells you to do no matter what it looks like.

After the service we headed back home to Tupelo, Mississippi with no money, no food, a quarter tank of gas and faith in God with joy in our heart. Keep reading because I'm about to teach you a lesson here that you can use for the rest of your life.

We were running on what little gas we had with not a care in the world. We were praising Jesus and thanking Him for great healing services with Charles and Frances and thanking God for all of the people that had received healing and mighty touches from God. We could have been letting our situation get the best of us if we decided to but we kept our faith in God.

What's the best way to get your needs

met? By ministering to the needs of other people God will minister to your needs. That's been proven over and over again. You take your attention and focus it outward off of your own problems and see what you can do to bless someone else. Sometimes your own problems may seem urgent or so big that it's hard to try to think about other people's problems, but with God you can do it.

As we were driving down the highway we came upon a car that seemed like the driver was having some kind of car problems or complications. Instead of going around him we decided to follow him for a little bit in case he needed some help. I guess we followed the car for a few short miles. The car started smoking and going slower and I knew then that he might need some help. We turned off at the rest area right behind him.

We pulled up right beside his car and got out and he already has his hood raised with a lot of smoke coming out from under the hood. We asked him if he needed any help. He said I could use a ride and we asked where he was headed. He said I'm going to Tupelo, Mississippi. We said that's where we're headed too.

He said I have enough food in my cooler for all three of us. He said, if you will give me a ride I'd share my food with you and pay all of your gas to Tupelo. Wow! Praise God! We quickly agreed to do this. He even gave us all of the tools in his car, which were some expensive tools. He even gave us the car but we didn't bother to go back and get it.

Do you see what I mean about ministering to the needs of other people and God taking care of your needs? It was only by the power of God that this happened like this. God has us at the right place at the right time to help him and vice versa. God had provided again. It turned out that he had just left from a casino and had lost all of his money. Tupelo was just a temporary stopping place for him till he could catch a bus to where he was going. I took him into my home for three days and filled him with the word of God constantly.

It's easy to thank God for something after He has provided it but can you ask God for something and immediately thank Him for it before you receive it and actually believe that He's going to provide? Here is an unusual testimony that you don't just hear everyday. I serve a God that gave everything to His only Son named Jesus. Jesus has given us all that His father has given Him. Why not claim it even if it does seem totally out of the ordinary sometimes? It belongs to us so lets claim it and

use it. It can and will manifest in our life if we learn how to reach out and get it by faith.

A few years ago I didn't have many possessions. In fact I could carry everything I owned in the back seat of my car. One night I moved into a small apartment in the middle of the night. The neighbors were asleep and no one from what I could tell knew that I had moved in that apartment building. It didn't matter anyway but this is an important part of the testimony.

I woke up the next morning and I didn't have anything to eat. All I knew was I was hungry and I knew what I wanted. Guess what I did? I put my faith in God. I set my dishes on my table along with a fork, knife, spoon, plate; the whole works. I bowed my head and I prayed and asked God to bless the food that I was about to eat. I thanked him for the steak and eggs that I was about to eat. I opened my eyes and my plate was just as empty when I finished praying as it was before I started the prayer. I wasn't moved by what I saw or didn't see. I know what I had believed God for and on top of that I had thanked Him for it.

The Bible says to ask believing with nothing wavering. I had done what God told me to do now He was about to do the rest. While I was thanking God for it I heard a knock

on my front door. I got up to answer it and this guy was standing there with a plate of food in his hands. He said my name is such and such and I didn't know anyone was living here but I live a couple of doors down. He said something told him to fix that and bring it to me. He said I don't know what it is but I had to do it. He said I have a plate of steak and eggs here if you would like it. I told him that it was God that told him to do that and I told him about me praying for it and that God used him to provide it. That really made his day. I also had a great opportunity to tell him about Jesus and believe me I filled him up with testimonies about Jesus and what Jesus had done for me.

So don't be moved by what you see in the natural. When you pray for something, believing don't let anything stand in the way of you hanging on to that prayer. We have a supernatural God that can do anything that we as Christians can believe Him for.

At lunchtime I set my table again and prayed and thanked Him for what I was about to eat. I named off the food I wanted and believed God would provide. I don't remember now what it was but a few minutes later the same guy knocked on the door with exactly what I had just prayed to God for.

God is just awesome. I love Him so

much. When you get plugged into Him you will understand your power you have with Him. He is the vine and we are the branches. As long as we feed from the true vine of God we can't help but grow spiritually and receive all that He has for us. But if you disconnect yourself from the vine you will be reaping from death because there is no life outside of God.

### Chapter 11

#### WORDS OF KNOWLEDGE

I will never forget when I preached a message in a small country church one time about words of knowledge. Right after the service this lady came up to me and said you've got something I want and I'm going to get it. She said you are so on fire for God. She saw the anointing so strong on my life and she wanted to have a strong anointing on her life. There is a price to pay for an anointing and it's called giving your all to God. Say Lord I'm here and I'm available and use me anyway You want to. Of course there is more to it like praying constantly and being more like Jesus everyday everywhere you go. Then the members of the church asked me to be their pastor. I told them I would have to pray about it and see what God wanted me to do. You have to make sure that God is calling you to places otherwise you can mess up big time. If you don't know, pray and ask God to give you two or three confirmations. Don't try to make the confirmations come about yourself, wait for

God to confirm His words to you. God knows exactly to confirm things to each and every individual. It turned out pasturing that church was not where He wanted me. I was called to be an evangelist, not a pastor. I don't envy a pastor's job. In fact they have their job cut out for them. I prefer going into places and hitting the people with the word of God then letting the pastor straighten out my mess after I leave town.

This particular message I preached and taught the whole congregation how to flow in the words of knowledge. At the end of the service many people called out a word of knowledge on each other and before long most of the members were ministering on one another. One person would stand up and point out someone that God had on their heart and they would call out a word of knowledge about Their faith was rising to the that person. maximum during that time of ministry. They were praying for each other and they were getting healed. Many people discovered during my message that they already had the gift of words of knowledge and didn't know it. They just needed some training in that area. Now God can use them mightily in that area. That also opened doors for God to use them in other gifts of the spirit too. Some of them learned that the still quiet voice they were hearing was

God showing them words of knowledge.

If you've been through Charles and Frances Hunter's healing class or attended any of their services you probably noticed they often call out words of knowledge about people in the audience. God will give them a certain sickness to call out and when they do usually several people with that particular sickness will come forward for prayer. Sometimes they will point out a specific person as God leads them and minister by the word of knowledge to that individual. You can't put God in a box because God can use you in the words of knowledge in many ways. The way He uses you to minister to one person may be totally different on the The end result is people are next person. getting saved, healed, delivered and all kinds of miracles happen while flowing in the words of knowledge.

I love flowing in the words of knowledge. It happens to be one of my favorite gifts to flow in. I have never missed it when I called out a word about someone. I have learned over the years to tell when it's God giving me a word for someone and whether it's me making it up or even if the devil is trying to give me a false word. It's almost like a skill that has to be perfected. The only way to improve on it is to use it and ask God to show you words

of knowledge. It doesn't necessarily mean that it will always be about someone else. It can be just about anything. It can be about events that are going to happen. It can be about disaster about to strike. It can be about something that you're going to go through today or tomorrow or even further in the future. Words of knowledge can be used to save your life or even someone else's life.

Another thing you will learn to do is to talk and listen for God to speak to you at the same time. So much for people having a one-track mind anymore. God can show you things while you're awake, while you're praying and even while you're asleep. You just have to stay in tuned to His voice at all times. There may be times you don't feel like you can hear God's voice but He can speak to you no matter how you feel.

I have had people tell me that God has never spoken to them or God doesn't speak to them. Some people wonder how can you hear God's voice. There are so many ways to word the question but it all boils down to one thing; you are supposed to talk to God and you are supposed to listen to God talk to you. When you're talking to God it can also come under the category of praying. I have had people tell me they don't want to bother asking God for

something because He may be busy answering someone else's prayer. God can answer every person's prayer request at the same time. I like what Frances Hunter had to say about praying. You can find this in her book entitled "Hotline To Heaven", chapter 1, page 6; I have heard many people say, "God never answers my prayers so I quit praying." I wonder how much faith they really have. I often ask a Sunday school class on Sunday morning to share their prayer answers during the week. And do you know what? If I meet a solid brick wall and no one has had a prayer answered, then I tell them flat out that they just haven't prayed this week, because if they had prayed, there would have been some prayer answers. And if you don't believe this is true, try praying yourself. Ask yourself honestly: Do I really pray? Do I really believe that God will answer my prayer? Do I really pray in faith believing?"

The first thing is you have to believe that God does talk to you. If you don't even believe He talks to you how do you expect to hear what He is saying? Another thing is in which ways are you trying to hear God speak? It could be that He may be speaking to you in a different way than you want Him to. There are many ways that people can miss hearing God's voice when He speaks. Do you spend quiet time alone with God and wait for Him to talk to you?

Did you know that the words of knowledge is one of the nine gifts that comes along with the Baptism of the Holy Ghost and the evidence of speaking in other tongues? On the day of Pentecost they were in the upper room and filled with the baptism of the Holy Ghost and they all spoke in other tongues. It was after that they started flowing in the gifts of the Holy Ghost. You can't have the benefits of the Holy Ghost without the Holy Ghost. You also can't have the benefits of a Christian without inviting Jesus into your heart and living a Christian life. Is it starting to make sense now?

When you get a word of Knowledge where does it come from? The first thing to remember is for God to speak to you and give you words of knowledge its because you're talking to Him too. If you can't take time to pray don't expect God to show you things. The Bible says the Holy Ghost says what He hears the Father say. He will not speak of Himself. So that means words of knowledge come from The Father.

Once you receive a word of knowledge the first thing is to recognize the fact that it is not something you conjured up in your own mind but rather that God is trying to tell you something. It can be a still quiet voice in many instances. It can be just a small thought that comes to you. It will be something that you already know absolutely nothing about. It will take faith to call it out. But in order to see what God is telling you, you must first recognize that He is talking to you. When you get that small nudge about something say, "OK, God I know you're talking, now what are you saying". Once you let God know that you know He is talking then He has your attention to say more. That's where a lot of people miss it. Too many people will get the first nudge and even know what it's about but immediately they discard it as something that they made up in their own mind or even wonder where in the world that just came from. Then they don't talk to God to see what He is trying to say. If you can get through the first part of the conversation and say God I know you're talking now I'm ready for more. That will open the door for God to tell you more about what He is trying to tell you. It has to be a two-way conversation.

God is a conversational person. He wants to know that when He talks to you that you at least are listening. When He has your undivided attention He will give you the rest of the word of knowledge.

Your listening to God does not take you away from anything else you're doing. You can talk and listen to Him. You can work and listen

to Him. You can even preach a message to a congregation and listen to God at the same time. You have to always keep an open ear to God. He can talk to you at anytime, just like you can talk to Him at anytime.

You will be amazed at the next step of the conversation that God will take it to. One day I was driving and I was at a major intersection. While parked at the red light I looked up at the sky and saw a gun in the sky at the right side of the light. In the normal you don't go around seeing a gun in the sky. I said God what is that for? He said there would be a shooting here today. I knew it was going to happen because God showed me.

On the news on TV that same night there had been a shooting where a man got out of his car while the light was red and he walked to the car in front of him and shot and killed all four people in the car. God can show you things before they happen if you will stay in tuned to Him and keep an open ear for Him to talk to you.

I pray in the spirit often and God shows me things that He wants me to pray for often during those times. He shows me things people are about to go through. Many times God shows me sicknesses that people have so I can pray for them. Sometimes He shows me something that's about to happen to someone and I pray for them and God delivers them from it. God loves it when people are praying for other people. He also loves it when you are praying for yourself. This one particular night I had been praying in the spirit for a few minutes when all of a sudden God showed me a friend and he was in his car and all of a sudden his car left the road and he was about to hit a great big tree in front of him. God showed me that so I could pray for him. I started praying for him to miss that tree until God showed me that I could quit praying about it.

I saw him at church the next service and I walked up to him and I knew that what God showed me was real. I didn't ask him if he ran off the road because I already knew he did. I asked him if he hit the tree when he ran off the road. He jumped back and asked how I knew he ran off the road. He said no one knew about that. I then told him how God showed me so I could pray for him. He said he ran off the road and just did miss the tree and all he did was scratch his finger a little and thanked me for praying for him.

I couldn't start to number the times that I would be laying hands on people or even praying for call-ins from television and God showed me words of knowledge to call out

about that person. Sometimes it's a word of knowledge about a sickness they have. Sometimes it's a prophecy. God can use you in great and mighty ways to minister to His people in unlimited means if we will only allow Him to do it. When you're praying for someone and all of a sudden you call out a word of knowledge about them their faith instantly rises. One of the reasons is because you are calling out something that they know you have no knowledge of unless God shows you. People tend to get healed easier when prayer is accompanied by words of knowledge.

It doesn't always work that way but in many instances it sure does. The words of wisdom go right along with the words of knowledge. Many times I don't share everything God shows me about someone. A lot of the time I'll say just enough to get the job done.

One thing about the Holy Ghost is He is a gentleman. God shows us things because He can trust us with things. People will set in a church service all day long if people are prophesying hoping they get a word from God.

If you have a pastor preaching a message and the gifts of the spirit are not in operation you will see a lot of people looking at their watch wishing he would hurry up so they can leave.

### Chapter 12

#### FEEDING THE MULTITUDES

I have heard many people say I should have died in the accident but I'm still here for some reason, God must have something He wants me to do and I wonder what it is. Or they say something like I should have died several times but God spared my life for something and maybe one day I'll find out what He wants me to do. I'm sure many of you has said that or heard other people say things like that. Do you know what your calling is?

There are many Christians today that have no clue or idea as to what they should be doing. The Bible points out very clearly what we should be doing. One place is in Deuteronomy chapter 28 starting in verse one. If you will hearken unto my voice and do what I command you to do today you will be blessed. How could you have missed that? It is there for each person to see. God didn't hide that verse from you. There are many more verses in the Bible that says what you should be doing. Take John chapter fourteen verse twelve. Verily,

verily I say unto you he that believeth in me the works that I do shall he do also; and greater works than these shall he do because I go unto my Father. Mark chapter sixteen lists several things we as believers will be doing and one of those is laying hands on the sick.

Jesus prepared food for the disciples and He also fed the multitudes. Did you know you could do that too? How do you feed the multitudes? How would many of you feed five people with the price of food these days? What would you do right now if God spoke to you and said there is a group of five thousand people that needs to eat and I want you to feed them today? Most of you would say God where could I get that much food for so many people.

The secret to feeding them is faith and obedience. When God tells you to do something He definitely has a means available for you to do that. You have to remember if God tells you to do that he's not talking to your flesh to do it anyway because your flesh is supposed to be dead to start with and you're alive in the spirit. Now that you realize it's your spirit that God is telling to feed that many people that brings us to another point. It's going to be God feeding them through you anyway. It's not going to be by your power and strength. All

He wants is a willing vessel to do it through. You just have to look beyond the natural into the spiritual realm. That's where God operates is in the spirit. After all He is spirit and they that worship Him must worship Him in spirit and in truth.

I remember when I was working in a radio station as an announcer. One day I went to work and the announcer I was relieving started telling me about him not having any food to feed his family with. He was married with five children still at home. My heart went out to him as I saw the tears forming in his eyes. I immediately set out to get some food for the family.

When I got off of work I called several people letting them know about the need and they all donated canned foods. I made my rounds to each person's house and collected the food. By the time I finished I had five large garbage bags of canned food. I delivered it to the needy family.

They invited me in and asked me to look at their refrigerator and cupboards. Everything was empty. There was not a single bit of food anywhere to be seen. The family had absolutely no food to eat at all. I took all of the food into their house and you should have seen the tears of joy that came to all of them. Praise God for

His provisions even when it seems that there is no way that things will improve. God has a special way of coming through at just the right time.

After that every time I heard anyone say they didn't have any food I would call on my family and friends again for more food donations. They always came through. I didn't know it when I ministered to the radio announcer God was using that to start my ministry. As I was saying earlier you need to minister to the individuals that God puts in your path. One day you will find yourself in a full time ministry if you talk about Jesus everywhere you go and minister to people as you have opportunity.

It soon got to where everywhere I went someone would say they needed food. I quickly started spending most of my time calling on people to donate food and going around to collect the food and deliver it. It started growing like wildfire. I couldn't figure out why no matter where I went there were people saying they were hungry. I have a compassion for people and I love people and want to minister in anyway I can. As I got busier and busier doing this I prayed one day and said God I need a building because I can't keep doing it like this.

At that time there were about fifty men and women living at the fair grounds under the bleachers and living in run down vehicles near by. Each Sunday I would go home and cook a lot of food and prepare sandwiches for the homeless people and take it to them and preach to them while they were eating. We had revival every Sunday. They started opening up to me and telling me about their problems because they saw that I was genuine and was really concerned about them.

I often saw other ministers try to go in there and help them but the homeless people wouldn't give them the time of day. One of the mistakes many people make while trying to the homeless is they will minister to immediately start judging them for drinking alcohol. Once you do that you have closed your door to help them. They have been told many times that drinking and drugs are wrong and what they want is someone to show God's love to them by example. I took them a lot of clothes and blankets and fed them every weekend but I wouldn't take them anywhere to buy alcohol or drugs. I won many of them to God and they got in church and became productive citizens of their community.

A couple of weeks after I asked God for a building for a food bank He provided me with

one. I started getting semi-tractor trailer loads of food to store and distribute to the needy people. It really started growing then. Now instead of me delivering to each household they were coming to my building each month to get food donated to them. It grew so fast I had to find more contacts to receive food from. I started getting people from a one hundred mile radius just to get food every month.

I didn't give food to people just because they said they need it; I qualified them with a strict application. I made copies of their ID including proof of income, expenses, social security cards, and utility bills. I quickly learned even in a food bank the devil will attack in every single solitary area.

I knew when someone came to me for food whether or not they had received food from another food bank that same day and if so how much food they got. There are many users of the system. That's what they become known as if they hit every food bank around loading their vehicles with food and trying to stock up at home. There are a certain percentage of people who do that. They do not consider that other people may need food too.

We learn how to be good stewards of the ministry God has placed us in. You will find out when you feed God's people that the devil

doesn't like it and he wants to keep God's people hungry. If someone is hungry they won't listen to you preach to them because they are trying to figure out where to get something to eat. When someone is hungry they don't have the strength to listen to you. Hunger is from the pits of hell and as Christians we need to step up and help take care of one another.

I quickly got two thousand seven hundred people on my food distribution list that came every month to receive food. As you can see my ministry didn't start out as a full time ministry; it started one on one. Then from there it led to full time.

At the same time I was already hosting a TV show and working in a radio station. I was in one sense already in the full time ministry because everything I did was centered on God. You never know if the next person you help will be what God uses to land you in your full time ministry but don't expect God to put you in a full time ministry if you can't help just one individual in your path.

It wasn't long before I had to let that building go and get a bigger one because I outgrew it so fast. In the next building God said I want you to have a food bank and a homeless shelter. That was a change but it sounded good to me. That way I could take the homeless

people off of the streets and get them in a warm place to sleep and give them the proper food they needed. The homeless shelter grew just as fast as the food bank did. It wasn't long before I had to move from that building because there weren't enough parking spaces to have capacity for all of my traffic.

If you own a business you know how important ample parking spaces are. It is a definite must that you accommodate the traffic.

God gave me even a bigger building this time and everything just kept growing in every aspect. This time I put in a food bank, homeless shelter, thrift store and restaurant. It seemed that every time God gave me another building other activities was also added that were much needed to minister successfully.

There are a lot of success stories of homeless people that I took in off the streets that landed a good job, opened a bank account, got a great paying job, invited Jesus in their hearts, got in church, got themselves a nice automobile, and the list goes on and on. Let me add too that before I opened a homeless shelter I took homeless people into my home so that started one on one too

My life is centered on serving Jesus and helping other people wherever I can. That's

#### Feeding The Multitudes

what keeps me going. Jesus said whatever you do unto one of the least of these you do unto Me. Remember that as you feed the hungry, you're feeding Jesus. When you bring the homeless in your home you're bringing Jesus in. I plan on opening food banks and shelters in other states and cities as the needs arise. Of course it takes funding to do that type of work, but it is very rewarding.

# Doing The Works Of Jesus, Plus More

#### Chapter 13

#### PERSECUTION

Jesus said if they did it to Him they would do it to us too. It's more enjoyable and desirable to do the things that Jesus did such as laying hands on the sick and see them recover than it is to be persecuted for His name's sake. When they persecute you the worst thing you can do is to quit serving God. When that happens put the pressure on the devil. How do you do that? It depends on what you're being persecuted for.

One way is to do more of what caused you to come under persecution and don't back down to the works of the devil. Win more people to God and open your big mouth a little wider for Jesus and let everyone know that Jesus is the reason you're here. You may find it a little difficult to believe what happened to me especially since I'm located in the United States. Something like this is what you would expect to hear about more in a communist country but not here.

I was working in a grocery store as a stocker. I hadn't been at that job long and had quickly become one of the faster stockers they had. We had just received a big truck of stock and had several stock people working that particular night. The owner of the store came by the aisle I was working on and walked right up to me and said you're doing a great job just keep it up. I said thank you and it's because of God that I'm able to do it. He walked off without another word. A few minutes later he came back and asked me if I said it was because of God that I was able to work like that. I assured him that's what I said. He said don't ever let me hear you say that again in my store. With that he walked off.

I went to work the next day and within a few minutes after I started stocking the shelves the owner came to me again and said you're doing a great job, keep up the good work. I said thank you and it's because of God that I'm able to work like that. He left without another word. The next day I went to work and a few minutes after I started stocking shelves he came by again and said you're going a great job, keep up the good work. I said thank you and it's because of God that I'm able to work like that. He left again without another word.

That was three days in a row this

happened. When I went home after each day I talked to God about it and thanked God for making me a good worker. I gave Him all of the glory for it. I know that pleased God because we are supposed to thank God for everything.

The next day I went to work and had just got started stocking the shelves when I heard the owner come on the microphone and say Dale Ross come to the front office. I had no idea what this could be about. The office was in the front of the store by the cash registers so I made my way up front. When I got to the office they told me to come in and the owner was in their and his father and every store manager was in that office. There wasn't much room for me to get in there but I made it.

As soon as I walked in the office the owner started cursing me in a loud voice. In fact it was so loud that every cashier could hear it and every customer in the front of the store could hear him. In between his curse words he said things like I told you not to say that it was because of God that you're able to work like you do and you kept saying it. He said God doesn't help you do anything. It just totally floored me and I couldn't believe that he was telling me this. It soon started hitting me what was happening. I told him in the office that it

was God that gave me the strength to work and I wouldn't deny Him. I said if it weren't for God I wouldn't be a good worker.

After a few minutes of being cursed out and yelled at I realized that I needed to witness to him because I felt that he needed Jesus in his heart. I started praying for him silently while being cursed out. In between his cursing I told him that he needed to invite Jesus in his heart so he wouldn't go to hell when he died. He started cursing ridiculing my beliefs in God that much more. I then told him about healings and miracles and the baptism of the Holy Ghost. I decided that I needed to silence the devil by hitting the storeowner with the total salvation plan, which included literally everything. said you couldn't lay hands on anyone and see them get healed. He came against everything I was saying. I was being persecuted because I gave God the credit and now I was taking the opportunity to try to help him with his walk with God.

No one else in the office said a word. I looked at his father a couple of times as if to say this is your son why don't you say something to him? I never did say that to him, I only thought it. I was persecuted and ridiculed that day for about an hour. After an hour he said you could go back to work now. I left the office

wondering which side of the bed he got up on that day and went back to stocking just shelves again. I was thanking Jesus for what has just happened to me. I knew it happened because they did it to Jesus. It's not a good feeling to go through something like that. It would be even worst if you deny Jesus in situations like that. The best thing to do is take advantage of the situation and realize that you are talking to other human beings that were created by God and when they get saved they will be your brothers and sisters in The Lord.

I went home after work and couldn't get that out of my mind. Why would he pay me on the clock to listen to him curse me out like that? What a waste of money! I could have put up a lot of stock during that hour. I definitely had better more productive things to do than to go through that kind of talk and accusations.

I went to work the next morning and just as I was about to start work he got on the microphone again and called me to the office. It was an exact repeat of yesterday. For the next hour he called me everything in the book and cursed me for my belief in God. For the next hour I witnessed to him and told him that he needed Jesus in his heart. He was yelling curse words at me and I was yelling Jesus words to him. All of the managers and his

father were in there this time too. After an hour he told me to go to work. I went back to stocking shelves. I went home again that night and had another talk to God about it. I said God why is this happening? I said God I will not deny you. I said God this man needs to be saved.

To make a long story short he called me in the office everyday for one week straight and cursed me out for an hour each day. Each day I would witness to him about Jesus, healings, miracles and the baptism of the Holy Ghost. There was even a few times during those sessions that he threatened to take me outside and give me a good beating. I didn't let those accusations stop me either because I knew God was able to make my enemies fall at my right side and at my left side. At the end of the week I was pretty much fed up with it and I went home and had another talk to God. I said God when will this end? I said God I don't think I can go through with this everyday; it's already been a week and he's not letting up. I said God I realize it's you that he's attacking and I will stick to my faith no matter what.

I went to work the next day and he didn't call me in the office. In fact he never mentioned it to me again but I kept lifting up Jesus. He found out he couldn't get me to take

credit away from God no matter what. His father never did say the first word during those times to his son to try to get him to stop doing that. It was in his power to at least try and he didn't even attempt it. One thing for sure is I definitely had God defending me and giving me all the right words at just the right time.

About two days after his son stopped calling me in the office his father passed away unexpectedly of a massive heart attack. I hope that some of the things that I had to say in that office helped him with his walk with God. The storeowner that came against my beliefs in God so much has since then been elected into political office.

That's not the only time I've been persecuted for telling people about Jesus. I've gone to the strip in Tupelo, MS quite a bit every weekend night to street preach. That's the hang out place for teenagers and young people. I guess just about every town has a hang out place where people gather on weekend nights and have their all night get-togethers. I won many people to Jesus on the streets. One night I took a pastors teenager with me. His father said he wanted to teach his son how to minister on the streets and wanted to know if I would take him along and teach him how to do it. I took him with me and he had one great lesson that

night he will never forget. The father even went along with us because he knew how teenagers were getting saved on the streets and he had heard so much about it.

God says to tell people about Him in this city whether they will listen or whether they won't listen to you because God has many people in this city and no one will lay hands on you to hurt you. I have heard every excuse and reason that can possibly be made up as far as why people can't or won't go on the streets and preach. Probably the biggest and most popular reason is because they are afraid they will get hurt.

Sometimes it's easy to wonder if people even read their Bible because it seems like they would know that verse of protection is in there. Besides, when you're sold out to Jesus you just naturally open your mouth and tell people about Jesus because He is your life. You shouldn't fear what man can do to you because your soul is in His hands. Man can't send your soul to hell. You should fear God only.

There was a group of us who hit the streets to witness. It seemed that every weekend our audience was growing and we always saw a lot of people give their hearts to Jesus. One night there was a group of about ten or so people standing around a car and we

decided to walk up to them to tell them about Jesus. We walked right up in the middle of them and started our normal conversation about how Jesus loved them and asked if any of them were a Christian. The answer we got was not necessarily what we expected. This guy said I'm in the marines and if you say one more word about Jesus I'm going to kill you. I would not have let this bother me but I had a teenager with me and I didn't want him to get hurt so I immediately said lets step over here to this other car for a minute. We told the group of people that we would be back. We said our prayer standing by ourselves asking God for His protection.

We all decided that we didn't come out to the streets to fight and there were more people that we could go witness to. We went over to another group of people and we had an audience of about fifty people there. They listened intently. A couple of minutes later someone walked up to us and said I just heard about that guy that threatened to kill you. They said in fact everyone has heard about it and no one likes it. We ended up going further down the street as we normally do to preach because we try to catch everyone out there and present the word of God to him or her.

As soon as we showed up they also said

they got word about the guy that threatened to kill us if we preached to him. We assured everyone that everything was ok. A couple of them said they were going to go kill him for threatening us. They said they wouldn't allow anyone to treat us like that because everyone liked us on the streets preaching to them. I told them not to go try to kill him. I assured them again that there was no problem. It wasn't but a few minutes before there was a whole group of them that had decided they were going to go after him for saying that. They went looking for him but he had already left.

It took them two weeks to find him. When they did find him they told him if he didn't find me and apologize to me for what he said they would kill him. He hunted me down and he found me. He couldn't wait to apologize. In fact every time I went to the streets to preach he found me and stood right there and listened to every word.

As you can see the Bible verse was made manifest in my life when God said I have many people in this city and no one will lay hands on you to hurt you. You should be telling everyone about Jesus no matter where you are. Jesus is your protection.

# CHAPTER 14 HOLY SPIRIT POWER

Once you receive the baptism of the Holy Ghost with the evidence of speaking in other tongues you have the power to do the works that Jesus did plus greater works than those shall you do because He has gone to be with the Father. You will see that command in John 14:12.

There are many Christians that have not received the full indwelling of the Holy Spirit and will never have the full power of God in their lives until they do. As you will recall on the day of Pentecost they were in the upper room and the Holy Spirit came and filled them and they were empowered and all began to speak in other languages. Jesus said in John 17 I will send the Comforter back to you, which is the Holy Ghost. He will not speak of Himself but will say what He hears the father say. He will do what He hears the father do. The Holy Spirit will never lift Himself up but will always point your attention to the father.

With the indwelling of the Holy Spirit in your life you can absolutely lay hands on the

sick and see them recover in the name of Jesus. You can go forth and do all the works that Jesus did plus more because you are now able to go beyond the natural into the supernatural realm. You can't go into the supernatural with the natural eyes. It takes faith in God's word to do the works Jesus did plus more. Faith comes by hearing and hearing by the word of God according to Hebrews chapter eleven verse one.

The way that you receive the baptism of the Holy Ghost with the evidence of speaking in other tongues is the same way you receive Salvation. When you invite Jesus into your heart to become your Lord and Savior for evermore He comes in and you know that you are saved. When you invite Jesus in who comes is? Jesus is the one that comes in. When you receive Salvation you receive a portion of the Spirit because He bears witness and confirms that you are saved. To receive the full indwelling of the Holy Spirit works the same way, you ask for it. You thank Jesus for the greatest gift on earth, the gift of Salvation. Then you ask Jesus to baptize you in the Holy Ghost with the evidence of speaking in other tongues. Jesus will meet you as the baptizer.

The devil doesn't like tongues because he doesn't understand tongues. Once you receive the fullness of the Holy Spirit the devil

#### Holy Spirit Power

will instantly tell you that you don't have it. He will tell you things like you're just saying a bunch of stuff that doesn't make any sense. You can't listen to that liar and the father of all lies because Jesus is the one that answered your prayer request when you asked for the baptism of the Holy Spirit.

It's the devils job to try to put doubt in your mind and to get you to serve him. Command the devil to get behind you in the name of Jesus. Use the power of the Holy Spirit on the devil every chance you get. That's what it's for and the devil hopes you don't learn how to use your power. Why do you think he immediately starts putting doubt in you when you receive it? It's because you now have the power you've needed in your life to lay hands on the sick and see them recover. It's the power that raised Jesus from the dead. It's the power that you use to come against the works of the devil with. That's why he hopes you never learn how to use it.

With the indwelling of the Holy Spirit operating in your life the sky is the limit on what you can do in the name of Jesus. Actually it goes beyond the sky, it goes beyond the horizon. It goes to the spirit realm that you can't see with your natural eyes. You now have the power to do the works that Jesus did, plus

more because He said you can and Jesus made the way for that to happen when He said I send the Comforter back unto you, which is the Holy Ghost.

When you ask Jesus to baptize you in the Holy Ghost with the evidence of speaking in other tongues you receive it by faith and you use it by faith. After you ask Jesus for the baptism of the Holy Ghost you He fills you up from your innermost being. It will spring up like rivers of living waters. It will by no means be dead waters. The Holy Ghost is life and there is nothing dead about Him. You will feel it spring up like rivers of living waters throughout your entire being. You will speak in a language that you have never spoken in before. It is not a language that you can be taught. This is done solely by the power of God.

One of the first things that many people notice after receiving the baptism of the Holy Spirit with the evidence of speaking in other tongues is that the bible comes alive to them. Before, they couldn't hardly figure out what parts of the Bible meant. Now the scriptures take on different meaning. The Bible scriptures are brought to life. It's so much easier to understand what it's saying to you and what it means. It makes the bible more enjoyable

#### Holy Spirit Power

because the Holy Spirit power will bring many things to life in you. Another way to describe it is like sitting in a church and listening to a pastor preach and he doesn't believe in speaking in tongues and he teaches that signs and wonders passed away with the last apostle. You just absolutely don't enjoy yourself because it's a dead church. There isn't life without the Holy Spirit being taught. On the other hand when you attend a church where the spirit of God is in operation and they lay hands on the sick and speak in other tongues and flow in the gifts of the Holy Spirit you really enjoy vourself because there is life. You can sit in a church service all day where there's life but take a dead church and you're ready to go home.

I have talked to many people that were sick and couldn't seem to get healed at church. I asked them if their church lays hands on the sick and see them recover according to the word of God? I would go on to clarify what I mean so they would know what I was talking about. Others that don't believe in miracles being for today pray for many people. Some people who pray for you to be healed really believe that miracles passed away with the last Apostle. That's like praying for someone but when they pray they are saying we will pray for you but we really don't believe you're going to get

healed. The bible says to pray, believing with nothing wavering. That's what I mean by the difference between a dead church and a live church.

The Holy Spirit is so powerful even the ground and floors can tremble when you walk on them. People were healed when they walked in Peters shadow in the bible. If that can happen the Holy Spirit is sure powerful enough to cause the ground to shake.

I was at a healing explosion with Charles and Frances one time. Between meetings I was standing out in the hallway and this lady came walking toward me. I could see my shadow in front of me.

I asked God does He think that He could cause that lady to fall out in the power of the Holy Spirit when she got in my shadow? I just stood there waiting in expectation. The closer she got the more I expected it to happen. When she walked in front of me she was right in my shadow. She fell out in the power of the Holy Spirit laughing. I knew what happened and I was rejoicing because someone went out in the power when they got in my shadow. God heard me and answered my prayer request. I just let her lie there knowing what had just happened. She stayed on the floor for a couple of minutes

#### Holy Spirit Power

laughing the whole time. When she got ready to get up I reached over and took her by the hand and helped her up. She went down the hall still laughing.

I believe God touched her in a great and mighty way while she was out under the power. All I could do was to thank Jesus for allowing that to happen. That wasn't the last time that has happened. I have seen many people go out in my shadow since then. I've seen people get healed of many things when they go out in the power of the Holy Spirit after walking in my shadow.

I went to another Healing Explosion with Charles and the most unusual thing happened while there. I literally saw a mighty move of God during those services as I always do. Many people got out of wheelchairs, arms and legs grew out, all kinds of sicknesses and diseases were healed. On top of that I was a big part of it because I was laying hands on some of those people and watching them get healed right before my eyes.

Talking about all those that received a healing and testifying on stage afterwards was just phenomenal. While they were testifying more people got healed because as you share what God has done for you other people say,

"God can do that for me too", and they get healed because their faith is to the point that they just believe. Many of those people got healed without anyone laying hands on them. God just reached out and touched them and there were miracles all over the place.

On the last day of the healing service I was headed to the hotel front desk to check out and experienced something that would forever change they way I would expect God to work through me with His power. As I was headed to the counter there was a long line and I was prepared to wait when all of a sudden just as I stepped right behind the last person in line and stopped the whole floor rose about three inches up. The whole floor had shaken. It rose up and went right back down.

I looked to see if anyone else had noticed it or if I was the only one that felt the power of God. The guy in front of me tuned around and asked me if I felt that. I said, "Felt what?" I wanted to hear him say it. He asked if I felt the floor shake and the whole floor rise up. I said, "Yes, I felt it". I looked at everyone else in line and every single person standing in line was turned around and looking straight at me as if I did it. They were asking, "What was that". Every person in there had felt it. I knew then it definitely had to be true. We had just

#### Holy Spirit Power

experienced a supernatural manifestation move of God.

That kind of power is just something you can hardly describe. I asked God what was that for? God told me to prophecy to all of the people and I did. I said this is because God wants to give each of you a message. I said God wants me to tell you that what you have seen during these three days of the Healing Explosion and what you have learned and experienced He wants you to take it back to your hometowns and do the same thing there. I said God is going to use all of you in great and mighty ways". That was the end of the message God told me to give them. Everyone tuned back around and prepared to check out of the hotel and make plans to take it back to their hometowns and turn their city and town upside down for God.

Even to this day the ground shakes when I walk. It doesn't do it everywhere I go but it happens often. God is alive in my life and the anointing of the Holy Spirit is constantly on the increase and along with the anointing comes power. Not just power but supernatural power. It is the kind of power that you don't learn anywhere. The Holy Spirit power can't be bought. You have to stay in tuned to God and listen for the Holy Spirit to tell you what He

hears the Father say. The power is so strong in my life even the bed shakes many times. It is awesome to walk in the power of the Holy Spirit. Anytime the ground, bed or anything else shakes I recognize that it's power and I immediately ask Jesus what is he trying to say to me. There is not a single miracle that you can't perform in the name of Jesus by the power of the Holy Spirit if you will only believe God to use you anywhere and anyway He wants to, even to do what the world would call impossible. With God nothing is impossible.

It is unlimited the works you can do in the name of Jesus with the indwelling of the baptism of the Holy Spirit.

My youngest sister Cindy was with pregnant child and I went to visit her. When I walked in the door she was sitting on the couch looking disappointed. I asked her what was wrong. She said the baby hasn't kicked in a couple of days. She said the baby hasn't moved not one little bit in a couple of days. I simply reached over and laid my hand on her stomach and I said, "In the name of Jesus". That's all I said and she jumped and hollered and said, "What did you just do"? I asked her what happened? She told me when I did that the baby jumped! She was no longer disappointed but instead she was a happy mother and

#### Holy Spirit Power

couldn't quit laughing. I said, Thank you Jesus for making the baby kick".

While I was an announcer for a local radio station this lady would call me up and talk to me about her problems she and her husband were having. I always assured her Jesus had His eyes on her situation and everything would work out just great. One day she told me that they wanted a baby and had tried unsuccessfully to conceive after several months. I made an appointment to visit them so I could pray and believe with them for a miracle. I ministered to her and her husband while at their house and I prayed for her to conceive in the name of Jesus. I spoke a healing into her womb. The Bible says you shall not be barren, but be fruitful and multiply.

A few weeks later she called me again and was just as happy as anyone could be. She went on to tell me how she was now expecting. As a result their marriage was restored and they named the baby after me as an honor. If you or anyone you know of is having trouble conceiving I encourage you to pray believing God to heal the womb or heal whatever may be the problem. The word of God can and will manifest in and through you but you must reach out by faith and claim His promises.

I want to challenge you today to pray and ask God to increase the anointing in your life. Pray the wildest prayer you can think of and believe God to really use you in supernatural ways like never before. Go forth and believe that God can and will use you to do the impossible. Don't limit God but rather say God you created me for Your purpose and I'm available for You to use today and everyday. Once you pray that prayer make yourself available for God.

We live in a world where people are literally dying everyday and going to the pits of hell for all eternity. We need to be telling everyone about Jesus and taking the people by force and snatching them from the grips of the devil. There are hurting people all around you and be sure to let your light shine so everyone can see it. We are joint heirs with Christ and it's our job to be leading people to Jesus each and everyday.

# **INDEX**

A accepted	81, 83, 89, 105, 107, 119, 121, 122, 124, 125, 126 believing4, 10, 31, 53, 61, 82, 83, 89, 120, 125 blessed 6, 30, 42, 47, 74, 95 building 33, 64, 82, 98, 99, 101, 102
В	C
back 1, 6, 8, 9, 10, 12, 13, 15, 16, 18, 22, 25, 26, 38, 39, 43, 50, 57, 59, 61, 62, 63, 64, 65, 66, 67,	child
68, 69, 74, 76, 78, 79, 81, 82, 93, 105, 106, 108, 110, 113, 115, 118, 122, 123 backslid 13, 18	church 3, 4, 6, 7, 12, 13, 15, 16, 18, 23, 25, 26, 27, 36, 50, 64, 65, 75, 76, 85,
backslidden 8	93, 94, 99, 102, 119 city 29, 78, 112, 114,
Baptism 90	123
baptism of The Holy Ghost	class 2, 25, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 36, 42, 44, 87, 89 command 15, 50, 95, 115 compassion 98 congregation 86, 92
60, 66, 72, 75, 77,	2 2

created vi, 55, 109, 126 crowd	gifts iii, 1, 8, 22, 35, 86, 87, 90, 94, 119 glory
gift 17, 86, 116	

heart 2, 3, 11, 13, 16,	J
17, 18, 19, 22, 43, 52, 55, 72, 74, 75, 79, 86, 90, 97, 108, 109, 111, 116 heaven	job 8, 24, 38, 40, 41, 43, 56, 59, 72, 86, 94, 102, 106, 117, 126
hesitation3	K
Holy Ghost 75, 90, 94,	1.:11 0 16 112 114
108, 110, 115, 116,	kill 8, 16, 113, 114
118	knowledgev, 22, 43,
Holy Spirit 9, 17, 34,	85, 86, 87, 90, 91,
35, 115, 116, 117,	93, 94
118, 120, 121, 123,	L
124	laughing. 35, 120, 125
homeless 99, 101,	lay hands iii, v, vi, 1,
102, 103	22, 27, 30, 33, 43,
honorv, 73, 125	108, 112, 114, 115,
horizon 21, 117	117, 119
hungry 19, 82, 98,	life iii, v, vi, 1, 3, 5, 7,
101, 103	9, 10, 18, 21, 23,
I	27, 36, 41, 42, 44,
	45, 61, 63, 71, 75,
indwelling 115, 116,	76, 79, 81, 84, 85,
117, 124	88, 90, 95, 102,
integrity <i>33</i>	112, 114, 115, 117,
interview 38, 39, 40	118, 123, 126
interviewed 40	love vi, 21, 61, 74, 75,
invitation 3, 16, 74	83, 87, 98, 99
invited 3, 13, 15, 16,	M
97, 102	
	marriage 125
	meat 30

microphone 17, 37,	115, 117, 118, 119,
50, 78, 107, 109	120, 121, 122, 123
minister <i>iii</i> , <i>vi</i> , <i>33</i> , <i>36</i> ,	Praise . 25, 31, 42, 81,
44, 49, 69, 80, 87,	97
94, 98, 99, 102, 111	pray 11, 12, 19, 26,
ministered. 19, 27, 75,	32, 33, 34, 35, 39,
77, 98, 125	42, 43, 49, 53, 65,
ministry v, 1, 29, 36,	68, 69, 83, 85, 89,
42, 45, 61, 86, 98,	90, 92, 93, 119,
100, 101	125, 126
miracle 68, 79, 124,	prayed. 1, 3, 4, 10, 22,
125	24, 27, 35, 39, 43,
miracles 9, 63, 76, 87,	45, 58, 61, 63, 65,
108, 110, 119, 122	69, 73, 76, 82, 83,
money 72, 76, 77, 78,	89, 98, 125
79, 81, 109	prayer . 1, 5, 9, 10, 18,
mother v, 8, 13, 52,	19, 26, 34, 35, 43,
124	66, 82, 83, 87, 89,
0	94, 113, 117, 120,
O	126
offering 30, 78, 79	praying 3, 8, 15, 17,
operateiii, 1, 52	19, 22, 31, 43, 49,
P	61, 63, 71, 82, 83,
	85, 86, 88, 93, 108,
pastor 6, 16, 17, 18,	119
22, 25, 85, 94, 119	preachiii, vi, 21, 92,
phenomenal 121	99, 101, 111, 112,
planted3	113, 114, 119
power. vi, 1, 5, 17, 21,	preparing 1, 3
22, 23, 27, 32, 34,	protecting 8
35, 56, 58, 60, 61,	protection 112, 113,
81, 84, 96, 111,	114

Q	signs and wondersvi,
qualified 19, 24, 38, 41, 46, 100	18, 32, 119 sins
R	soul112
rejected	speaking in Tongues languages 115 spirit vi, 1, 21, 22, 33, 35, 57, 60, 76, 86, 92, 94, 96, 117, 119
Salvation	streets 7, 102, 111, 112, 113, 114 suffered
tongues 17, 119 seeds	teach 18, 22, 79, 111 teaching v, 18, 24, 36, 42, 78 testimony .iii, 31, 39, 40, 44, 45, 56, 61, 64, 67, 68, 72, 73, 81, 82 tithes

V	Vo-Tech classes
vehicle 37, 56 vicious 12	small engine repair2, 3
victory breakfast 77,	$oldsymbol{W}$
78 visualize	watered

Dale Ross is really on fire for God and believes that if he pleases God he can't go wrong. Dale believes God to do literally anything He wants to do through him. Praying for the sick, walking in the supernatural and carrying on The Great Commission given to each Christian is a daily lifestyle for this dedicated Christian.

Charles & Frances Hunter said, "This is interestingly written so that you will want to read more and more and you will want to get from one chapter to the next". Dale has seen people healed of just about every type of sickness and disease as he ministered to them. He has ministered the baptism of The Holy Ghost to multitudes with the evidence of speaking in other tongues. Your Faith will rise and you will go forth in greater measure as you study these chapters.

# Doing The Works Of Jesus, Plus More

Dale Ross Ministries, Inc. P. O. Box 2722 Tupelo, MS 38803 U. S. A.

